
 
 

Planning Board – June 26, 2017, 6:30PM 
City Hall Council Chambers - 3 Washington Street, 2nd floor 

 
AGENDA 

 
I. Call to order – Roll Call 
 
II. Minutes of previous meeting – May 22, 2017 
 
III. Driveway 

1. Archway Farms – 183 Arch Street – Driveway – Property owner Mark Florenz, owner of 
Archway Farms seeks to add a second driveway to the property.  The existing driveway 
serves the residence. An additional driveway is proposed to accommodate the truck 
deliveries needed for the family’s farm business. The 56-acre property is in the Agricultural 
Zoning District (TMP# 917-11-028). 

 
IV. Public Hearing 

1. S-02-17 – 533 Winchester Street – Subdivision – Applicant Wendy Pelletier of Cardinal 
Surveying & Land Planning, on behalf of owner SNG, LLC, proposes to subdivide the 
existing 2.88 acre parcel at 533 Winchester Street into two lots.  The site is located in the 
Low Density Zoning District (TMP# 911-26-040).  
 

2. SPR-895, Mod. 1 – 30-42 Production Avenue – Site Plan – Applicant Jim Phippard of 
Brickstone Land Use Consultants, LLC, on behalf of owner A. Ranger Curran Jr., proposes 
to build a 3,200 sf addition for warehouse space at the rear of the existing 30,000 sf 
building.  The site is 3.08 acres in size and located in the Industrial Zoning District (TMP# 
702-01-010). 

 
3. SPR-07-17 – 143 West Street – Site Plan – Applicant David Bergeron of Brickstone Land 

Use Consultants, LLC, on behalf 143 West Street, LLC proposes to build a 2-story addition 
with a 1,520 sf footprint to the rear of the building.  The site is 0.40± acres in size and 

located in the Office Zoning District (TMP# 002-02-012). 
 
V. New Business 
 
VI. Director Reports 

 Board Survey 
 Transition to Electronic Devices 

 
VII. Upcoming Dates of Interest – July 2017 

Planning Board Meeting – July 24, 6:30 PM 
Planning Board Steering Committee – July 11, 12:00 PM 
Joint PB/PLD Committee – July 10, 6:30 PM 
Planning Board Site Visits – July 19, 8:00 AM – To Be Confirmed 

1 of 73



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE IS INTENDED TO BE BLANK. 

2 of 73



Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

May 22, 2017 

Page 1 of 11 

 

CITY OF KEENE 

NEW HAMPSHIRE 

 

PLANNING BOARD 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

Monday, May 22, 2017 6:30 PM Council Chambers 

 

Members Present 

Gary Spykman, Chairman  

Douglas Barrett, Vice-Chair 

Nathaniel Stout 

Councilor George Hansel 

Mayor Kendall Lane 

Andrew Bohannon 

Chris Cusack 

Martha Landry 

 

 

Staff: 

Rhett Lamb, Asst. City Manager/Planning 

Director 

Tara Kessler, Planner 

Michele Chalice, Planner 

 

Members Not Present: 

Tammy Adams, Alternate 

David Webb, Alternate 

Pamela Russell Slack 

I. Call to order – Roll Call 

Chair Spykman called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM and a roll call was taken. 

 

II.  Minutes of previous meeting – April 24, 2017 

Chris Cusack offered the following correction: 

Page 2 – the name should correctly read as Brennan. 

 

A motion was made by George Hansel to accept the April 24, 2017 minutes as amended. The motion was 

seconded by Mayor Kendall Lane and was unanimously approved. 

 

III. Public Hearing 

1. SPR-02-17 – Liberty Utilities – 43 Production Avenue – Site Plan – Liberty Utilities 

(Energy North Natural Gas Corp.) proposes to install a temporary compressed natural gas facility at 43 

Production Avenue.  The site is 16.2 acres in size and located in the Industrial Zoning District (TMP# 702-

01-005).  The Applicant is requesting a Surface Water Protection Ordinance Conditional Use Permit for 

the installation of paved vehicle turnaround in the Surface Water Protection Buffer.  

 

A.   Board Determination of Completeness. 

Planner Tara Kessler stated the applicant has requested exemptions from providing a landscaping plan, 

grading plan and architectural details. However, staff feels granting these exemptions will not have any 

bearing on finding this application complete. 

 

A motion was made by Mayor Kendall Lane that the Board find Application SPR-02-17 as complete. The 

motion was seconded by George Hansel and was unanimously approved. 

 

B. Public Hearing 

Mr. Sean Furey of Liberty Utilities addressed the Board first. Mr. Furey stated he was here to talk about 

their temporary CNG Facility being proposed on Production Avenue. Liberty Utilities purchased NH Gas 

in 2015. The first phase of this project would be the temporary CNG Facility and the second phase would 

be the construction of a permanent facility on this site. Mr. Furey stated they are currently using propane 

air and this site is serviced from Emerald Street. The benefit of natural gas is the cost, as customer 

equipment needs to be modified to be able to use propane air. There are less moving parts – hence natural 

gas is more reliable and they would also be able to provide a steadier BTU. Mr. Furey then showed the 

Board a rendering of their current system, which consists of 30 miles of underground lines. 

 

3 of 73



Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

May 22, 2017 

Page 2 of 11 

 

Mr. Peter Walker, Environmental Scientist was the next to address the Board. Mr. Walker stated this site 

is about 16.2 acres in size, accounting for the portion of Production Avenue that is proposed for 

discontinuance. He noted there is a petition filed by the applicant to discontinue that portion of the city 

right of way. He added even though there are 16.2 acres, 50% of this property has a conservation 

easement. In 2002, the city approved a permanent facility on this site and the easement was placed at that 

time. Because of this discontinuance, a portion of this site will be deeded from Liberty Utilities to the 

City for a motor vehicle turn around to replace the cul-de-sac.  

 

Mr. Walker explained the skid unit would resemble a shipping container, which would have equipment to 

offload the gas. There will be no permanent fuel tanks located on site. Fuel will be brought in on a truck. 

The truck will be connected to the CNG skid, and in turn the skid will be connected to the gas main. Mr. 

Walker noted they are proposing a security fence around the skid, and there will be an emergency 

generator located on site as well as some security lighting.  

 

He went on to refer to sheet C3 of the plan set, which outlines the turnaround area. This is a dead end 

street. To allow space for motor vehicles to turn around, they propose to install a hammer head paved area 

off Production Avenue (25 feet wide extending west). There is a conditional use permit requested for this 

work as it impacts a small portion of the Surface Water Protection Buffer. There is a grey area shown on 

the map, which Mr. Walker stated were delineated wetland areas. He explained the city regulations call 

for a 30-foot setback from wetland areas in the Industrial Zone. There is no other way to install the turn 

around without encroaching on the buffer. While there will not be a direct wetland impact, there will be a 

262 square foot area that will be graded (side slope) in the buffer area. He referred to the erosion control 

measures that will also be taken. There is an existing water and sewer line. The city has asked the 

applicant to cut and cap the sewer line and place a gate valve on the water line to shut water off if needed. 

 

Plan Sheet C4 shows how tractor trailers will enter the site.  Mr. Walker noted that the important point is 

for these vehicles to access the skid they would have to access the adjoining site owned by Ranger 

Curran. The applicant has come into an agreement with Mr. Curran in the form of an easement. Mr. 

Walker showed detail as to what the security fence would look like and the erosion control fence would 

look like. The applicant referred to a ten foot high security fence in their application but what they call for 

is actually an eight foot tall fence.  

 

Plan Sheet M1 shows the piping arrangement plan, which displays an eight-foot long gas main extending 

into the site and connecting to the CNG Skid. 

 

Plan Sheet E4 is the lighting plan.  Mr. Walker noted there will be new lighting on site, but there will be 

no spill of illumination over the property line. 

 

This concluded Mr. Walker’s presentation. 

 

Staff comments were next. Planner Tara Kessler addressed the Board. Ms. Kessler began by going over 

the Board’s 19 development standards. She referred to the portion of the right of way the applicant has 

petitioned the City Council to discontinue and noted there will be a hammer head turn around installed to 

replace turnaround provided by the existing cul de sac.  

 

Drainage: She noted a small portion of pavement is being installed where the turnaround is being 

proposed; however, there are no significant issues with reference to drainage.  

 

Sedimentation and Erosion Control:  The applicant is proposing to install silt fencing along the perimeter 

of the work area.  This fencing will remain in winter months to limit potential sedimentation from the 

snow storage on the adjacent wetlands. The applicant is also proposing to install silt-fencing around the 

edge of the proposed turnaround area during construction to prevent impact to the wetlands.  

 

Hillside Protection: There are no precautionary or prohibitive slopes on the site.  

 

4 of 73



Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

May 22, 2017 

Page 3 of 11 

 

Snow Storage:  The applicant proposes to store snow, which will be removed from the areas surrounding 

the temporary CNG facility, in an upland area between the existing roadway and the wetland boundary 

that surrounds the site. The silt fencing will be an added measure of protection. 

 

Flooding: A portion of the site is located within the 100-year floodplain but no element of this project 

would impact the100-year floodplain. The applicant is not proposing to place fill within this area.  

 

Landscaping:  The applicant does not propose to install any new landscaping as part of this project as this 

site is set far enough from Route 9 and is not highly visible from Production Avenue. Staff does not feel 

any landscaping is necessary.  

 

Noise:  The applicant has noted that the operation of the CNG skid equipment typically generates 50 to 60 

dBA, which is consistent with the sound levels in an industrial area. This standard appears to be met.   

 

Screening:  The site is not visible from NH Route 9 or from a good portion of Production Avenue. For 

security purposes, the applicant is proposing to install an 8’ high fence with an extension arm that will 

protrude approximately 1’ from the top of the fence. This extension arm will be lined with 3-rows of 

barbed wire. There will be a gate entrance into the facility.   

   

Air Quality:  The applicant meets the state’s air quality standard.  

 

Lighting:  The Applicant proposes to install four, 200 watt, pole-mounted lighting fixtures. This lighting 

meets the city’s standard as they are full cut-off fixtures. For security purposes, the applicant is proposing 

to reduce light levels by 50% between the hours of 10 p.m. and 6 a.m. however, if there is a truck delivery 

that comes through during that time period the light level will go back up to 100%.   

 

Sewer and Water: The site is currently served by an existing sewer and water line. As mentioned, a gate 

valve will be installed for the water and the sewer line and it will be cut and capped. It can be reconnected 

in the future if there is a need.  

 

Traffic: The estimated weekly traffic volume to the site will be approximately two to three CNG tanker 

trucks and one service van during normal winter operations. During peak winter operations when the 

temperature is at or below 0°F, the daily traffic volume is anticipated to be one CNG tanker truck and one 

service van.  

 

Comprehensive Access Management: The applicant notes that the vehicles entering and exiting the site 

will utilize Production Avenue as well as the existing paved driveway on the adjacent property at 30-42 

Production Avenue, which is owned by Ranger Curran.  Staff had concerns about securing this use with 

something more than a written agreement between the applicant and Mr. Curran and hence a temporary 

easement is going to be recorded for the duration of the work on this site.  

 

Hazardous and Toxic Materials: The applicant has indicated there will be no hazardous material stored on 

site and felt the Board should be raising this issue with the applicant should they have any further 

concerns.  There will be a spill kit on site to address any spill issues from vehicles.  

 

Filling / Excavation:  No changes to the existing grades will be made on the site. This standard appears to 

be met. An excavation permit from the City will be required for any excavation in the City Right-of-Way.   

 

Wetlands: There are substantial wetland areas on this parcel (approximately 12.7 acres). The Applicant 

does not propose to impact any wetland areas but is proposing to impact the 30-foot Surface Water 

Protection buffer. The applicant is requesting a conditional use permit.  The criteria for reviewing / 

approving this permit are outlined in the staff report. The City’s process is that any applications for a 

Surface Water Protection conditional use permit would go before the Conservation Commission for 

review / comments.  This applicant was presented to the Conservation Commission on May 15. The 

5 of 73



Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

May 22, 2017 

Page 4 of 11 

 

comments provided by the Commission include concern for the overall loss of bottom land in the city. It 

was also noted this is a valuable site for Yellow Warblers. 

 

Surface Waters: Ms. Kessler noted Ash Swamp Brook is the closest surface water body and is located 

550-feet away from the proposed temporary CNG facility and hence this standard appears to be met.  

 

Stump Dumps: As this project does not involve any tree clearing, this standard appears to be met.  

 

Architectural and Visual Appearance: The temporary CNG facility will include a modular metal 

decompression skid which is approximately 8’ high by 40’ long by 8’ wide shipping container type unit, 

which would rest on top of the existing pavement. The skid will be largely out of view from the public 

Right-of-Way and will be located in a predominantly industrial area.  

 

This concluded Ms. Kessler’s comments. 

 

Ms. Landry asked what the process is for this use to become a permanent use. Ms. Kessler stated the 

applicant would need to apply for the full site plan process. They would also need to obtain a wetland 

permit from NHDES for any impact to the wetland areas.  

 

Mr. Stout wanted clarification from the applicant as to what happens after temporary use ends. Mr. Furey 

stated they would like two winters out of the temporary facility and during this time they would like to 

start the permit process for the permanent facility. 

 

Mayor Lane asked whether this facility will only service Monadnock Marketplace and asked whether 

expansion will happen after the permanent facility comes in. Mr. Furey agreed this was the plan. 

 

Councilor Hansel asked whether the expansion would mean additional truck access. Mr. Furey stated as 

they expand they would need more space and this would mean a larger facility.  

 

The Chairman asked for public comment next. 

 

Mr. Jeff Daly of Nashua was the first speaker. Mr. Daly felt the applicant’s plan should indicate with a 

circle the area for possible future expansion. Mr. Daly referred to the toxic Marcellus shale and its impact 

on the environment and felt an environmental impact statement was important for this proposal, which 

will let everyone know what type of gas is being put into the environment and what type of a protocol 

needs to be followed in an emergency. 

 

Mr. Daly stated the other issue that needs to be looked at is what the predicted gas loss in the whole 

system on the site is. He also asked whether there should be a berm around the site to prevent any leaks 

from getting into the site and what provisions have been made to make sure rainwater doesn’t wash 

pollutants into the wetlands. He also asked, because of the wetlands in this area, whether there should not 

be a designated snow storage area especially at the turnaround area.  

 

Stephanie Sharpe of Fitzwilliam began by noting that tomorrow, May 25, would be the one year 

anniversary of the net pipeline being withdrawn. She stated that she belongs to an organization, which is 

trying to settle down “pipeline pushers”. She talked about Liberty Utilities trying to get into New 

Hampshire on a permanent location and felt they are attempting to set up a false need for this and asked 

the Board to look more into this.  

 

She pointed out that Keene has a Climate Action Plan a Climate Adaptation Plan, and a great recycling 

facility and felt there are many residents trying to protect this community and asked the Committee to 

look at information available about the disadvantage of fracked gas. Ms. Sharpe stated there was 

discussion about spills but are not discussing about this getting into the air we breathe. She added that 

fracked gas has chemicals that no one is aware of. She asked whether there has been any alternative being 

suggested for this proposal. Ms. Sharpe indicated what Keene does affects the entire region and the State. 

6 of 73



Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

May 22, 2017 

Page 5 of 11 

 

 

Jeff Scott of Chesterfield asked whether this proposal is fitting with the master plan as the city is trying to 

move more towards renewable energy. He stated an approval such as this has far reaching implications. 

Mr. Scott felt if Liberty Utilities is approved right behind them will be Kinder Morgan, which would 

bring about eminent domain and asked the Board to keep this in mind. Mr. Scott also talked about 

American Petroleum looking to export, which would drive the price up for local consumers.  

 

John DiBernardo of Keene stated he operated the propane facility on Emerald Street for many years. He 

stated what is being proposed today is the alternative; it is the natural progression in this industry. 

Underground pipeline has existed since before the civil war and felt natural gas is the better choice for 

Keene.  

 

Pam Clarke of Westmoreland was the next speaker. Ms. Clarke felt we have passed the breaking point 

environmentally and is not something that can be ignored anymore. She felt there are alternatives to 

natural gas such as wind, bio fuel and solar. She felt these companies are in this for a profit and felt the 

alternatives she mentioned are much safer. 

 

 Mr. Chris Welch of Wilton NH felt this is the time to turn our backs on the fossil fuel industry and to 

embrace the future. Methane is the most powerful greenhouse gas in the world; it is about 100 times more 

powerful than carbon dioxide. He stated in 2016 there were 236 pipelines and pumping station leaks, over 

one million gallons of crude oil and fracking fluid was released into the environment and over 200,000 

gallons of gasoline leaked into the environment from safe pipelines. Mr. Welch stated what is being 

presented is another fossil fuel, which will not be safe and felt the alternatives should be embraced. 

 

Stephanie Sharpe addressed the Board again and stated one of the things she did not mention is if this 

community wants to be a place that would like to retain young people it needs to be appealing to them and 

felt solar is something that seems to be booming. She felt Keene should be that city which makes the first 

choice to enhance what Keene means in this state. 

 

The Planning Director felt it might be important for the Board remind the public of the nature of the 

Board’s role here tonight. He noted in as much as it is appealing to talk about environmental issues, the 

Board’s role here is much more localized and finding compliance with 19 specific standards. The Chair 

Spykman agreed and noted the 19 standards staff referred to are the only ones the Board can consider.  

 

Mr. Daly asked whether the Board is permitted to give recommendation regarding specific issues such as 

water retention on site, snow storage, toxic material entering the site etc. Chair Spykman stated most of 

these items were addressed during the staff report. Mr. Daly stressed the importance of notations on the 

drawings regarding the location of future expansion. Mr. Lamb stated the Board does not have specific 

requirements for natural gas delivery systems. He added the applicant has been in contact with the Fire 

Department and all the systems designed have been designed in conjunction with fire codes and further 

permitting would have to be in compliance with the Fire Department. Mr. Daly stated the NFPA Standard 

is outlined in the Board’s review. Mayor Lane stated NFPA Standards are not covered under this Board’s 

review – this is part of the Fire Department review. Mr. Daly felt this should be part of the Board’s 

standards. He questioned who would be responsible should there ever be an incident. It would then 

become the tax payer’s responsibility. Mr. Daly talked about the Kinder Morgan pipeline and the impact 

it had on other communities. Mayor Lane asked that the Chairman restrict the discussion to what is 

relevant to the Board’s consideration.  

 

Ms. Pam Clarke asked the Mayor how these issues are not relevant to today’s discussion. The Chairman 

stated the point of relevance is what the Board needs to judge applications on and if the comments are not 

related to the standards the Board needs to judge an application by then they are not relevant. Ms. Clarke 

expressed frustration with the standards of the Board.  

 

Mr. Lamb stated this is not an environmental review and it is not enforcing state law or federal law. He 

went on to say the review that happens here is related to site development standards which relate to 

7 of 73



Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

May 22, 2017 

Page 6 of 11 

 

residential development and commercial development. The environmental regulations pertaining to this 

review are those that have been written into these standards by the Board, which are appropriate for the 

City of Keene. There are no greenhouse gas emission standards written into these standards, the closest 

thing to air quality are those that relate to the creation of fumes, dust or smoke and most of that is limited 

by State Law RSA 674 which limits what a Board can consider, as the State regulates the release of 

pollutants into the air. He added there are strict limitations on what a Planning Board can do.  

 

Ms. Clarke felt it was pointless to have the public present today. Chair Spykman stated the point of the 

hearing is for the public to give input according to the items the Board can consider under state law.  

 

With no further comments, the Chair closed the public hearing. 

 

Councilor Hansel stated he was comfortable that the petitioner has complied with the 19 development 

standards, which have been verified by staff. Mayor Lane noted the issues raised by the public today are 

important to the State and are regulated by the State; they are not regulated by the city. The Mayor asked 

whether there needs to a separate motion regarding the conditional use permit. Mr. Lamb stated both 

items are being granted under one motion. 

 

Vice-Chair Barrett asked about inserting a time limit for the temporary nature of this use.  

 

Mr. Bohannon clarified the applicant would come back before the Board for the permanent facility. The 

Chairman agreed they would.  

 

Chair Spykman noted that what is being introduced is not something that does not already exist in this 

area. We are switching from one form of gas to another form of gas and felt natural gas is better than what 

we have now. We are not bringing in natural gas to an area that does not have gas. 

 

Ms. Kessler with reference to the Vice-Chair’s question stated the Board has leverage in some instances 

such as requesting a letter of credit and the completion of site plan improvements which need to be 

adhered to for the temporary site. She added all site plans are considered to be permanent even though a 

use may be temporary.  

 

C.   Board Discussion and Action  

A motion was made by Mayor Kendall Lane that the Planning Board approve SPR-02-17, and the Surface 

Water Protection Conditional Use Permit, as shown on the plan set entitled “Site Plan Review / 

Conditional Use Permit Keene Temporary CNG liberty Utilities (Energynorth Natural Gas) Corp. 

Production Ave Keene, New Hampshire” prepared by Sanborn Head on May 9, 2017 with the following 

conditions: 

 

1. Prior to signature by Planning Board Chair:  

 

A. Owner’s signature on plan 

 

B. Approval by City Council of the discontinuation of a portion of Production Avenue and 

modification of the road layout to include a vehicle turnaround as shown on Sheet C1 “Proposed 

Conditions Plan” and Sheet C3 “Proposed Roadway Turnaround” included in the approved plan 

set.   

 

C. Submittal by the Applicant of documentation in a form acceptable to the City of an easement 

demonstrating the right of Liberty Utilities to access the adjacent property at 30-42 Production 

Ave (TMP# 602-01-010) owned by Ranger Curran, Jr.  

 

D. Submittal of a revised Sheet Sv-1 “Existing Conditions Plan of Land” that shows the City’s 

drainage easement at the northeast portion of the parcel to be reviewed and approved by the City 

Engineer.   

8 of 73



Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

May 22, 2017 

Page 7 of 11 

 

 

The motion was seconded by George Hansel and was unanimously approved.  

 

2. SPR-03-17 – 185 Winchester Street – Site Plan – Jim Phippard of Brickstone Land Use 

Consultants, LLC, on behalf of Theroux Properties, LLC proposes to demolish and rebuild an existing 

barn and expansion of parking.  The site is 0.59-acres in size and located in the Commerce Zoning 

District (TMP# 052-01-003). 

 

A.   Board Determination of Completeness. 

Planner Michele recommended the Board accept this Application as complete. A motion was made by 

George Hansel that the Board find Application SPR-03-17 as complete. The motion was seconded by 

Mayor Kendall and was unanimously approved.  

 

B. Public Hearing 

Mr. Jim Phippard of Brickstone Masons addressed the Board on behalf of Theroux Properties LLC. Mr. 

Phippard stated this property is located at 185 Winchester Street, in the Commerce District and is a 0.59 

acre lot. There is an existing building and barn on the property as shown on the plan. It is a mixed use 

property; the barn in the past was occupied by an antique shop. Mr. Phippard referred to where the curb 

cuts and parking spaces are located. There will be two more spaces added. There is also a parking area to 

the rear which the applicant is proposing to expand, for a total of 22 parking spaces which is what is 

required by zoning.  

 

The footprint referred to on the plan is for a new barn and office space which will continue to be attached 

to the main house. The footprint will be slightly larger than the existing barn but it includes a shed. It will 

be a two-story building, similar in appearance to the existing barn. The second floor will be used for 

office space and the ground floor will be used for storage. The west side of the building will have no 

openings because of security reasons. The rear side which is the north side of the building would have an 

overhead door for loading and unloading material. There will be windows along that side. The building 

would be of white vinyl siding, with dark colored fiber glass shingles (appearance would be similar to 

what exists now).  The existing building is 26 feet tall; this building will be 31 feet tall.  

 

The dumpster would be located where it exists today on a concrete pad. The proposal is to widen the curb 

cut on Foundry Street as per request of the Fire Department to accommodate the Ladder Truck.  

 

New landscaping is being proposed, but there are no changes to landscaping being proposed along 

Winchester Street. Along Foundry Street there will be three flowing pear trees added to complement the 

existing flowering trees, there is arbor vitae being proposed along the rear for screening. Staff asked for 

arbor vitae for the north side. The abutter to the north would like not to have any more arbor vitae added 

and the applicant agrees. This is the area for snow storage and adding arbor vitae would be an added 

expense for the owner who would then have to haul the snow away.  

 

Drainage – this site would continue to be a zero discharge property. The drywell constructed in the 1990s 

to collect runoff at the rear has worked very well. This infiltration system is being proposed to be 

expanded with a second dry well system and they will be connected with each other and would double the 

infiltration system capacity. The soils in this area have never been an issue for infiltration.  

 

Mayor Lane asked whether Mr. Phippard’s office will be located in this building or if he is moving to 

another location. Mr. Phippard stated he was not moving.  This concluded Mr. Phippard’s presentation. 

 

Staff comments were next. Planner Michelle Chalice talked about the soil in this area and how the 

applicant is utilizing the soils with the available LID measures. She indicated the screening staff 

suggested to the north is for the benefit of the adjacent property owner, however, if that property owner 

does not want this screening, staff is agreeable with that. Staff had raised concern about the small lighting 

fixtures but staff has just learned these fixtures will be used under awnings. The wall pack lighting will be 

reduced to 50% starting at 10 pm. Mr. Phippard stated the LED fixtures will be seven-watt full cutoff 

9 of 73



Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

May 22, 2017 

Page 8 of 11 

 

fixtures. The wall packs are dimmable fixtures, which would be on an activity sensor where the lights 

would go off if there is no activity for five minutes or longer and would be turned off to 50%.   

 

The Chairman asked for public comment, with no public comment the Chairman closed the public 

hearing. 

 

C.   Board Discussion and Action  

A motion was made by Mayor Kendall Lane that the Planning Board approve SPR-03-17 as shown on the 

plan entitled “New Storage Barn and Office” as well as Theroux Properties, Tax Map 05-2-01-003, 185 

Winchester Street, Keene, Cheshire County, NH dated March 14, 2017 and January 5, 2017 respectively. 

Site Plan set is drawn by Brickstone Landuse Consultants LLC Masons at various scales and schematic 

architectural drawings are by DBR Architects at a scale of 1/4” = 1 foot with the following conditions: 

 

Prior to signature of Planning Board Chair Spykman, submittal of a revised site plan to show 

 

1. The elevation of existing contours. 

2.  The pipe inverts for proposed and existing catch basins 

3. The seasonal high water table elevation. 

4.  Submittal of security for landscaping, site erosion control and as built plan in a form and amount 

acceptable to the Planning Director and City Engineer.  

 

The motion was seconded by George Hansel and was unanimously approved.  

 

3. Planning Board Fee Schedule – The City of Keene Planning Department is proposing to 

amend the Planning Board Fees, which were last revised in February of 2012.  The proposed revisions are 

documented on the Planning Board Fee schedule dated May 10, 2017, which is available for review in the 

Planning Department on the 4th Floor of City Hall.  

 

Mr. Lamb referred to language from the City Council fiscal policies regarding cost recovery. Cost 

recovery goals should be the total cost the city expends. For the Planning Department it would include all 

departments that support the Planning Department. The fiscal policy talks about fees and charges being 

set less than full recovery when high level of cost recovery will negatively impact low income groups, 

collecting fees and charges is not cost effective, when there is no relation between the amount paid and 

the benefit received (e.g. social service programs or access to parks and play grounds), or when collecting 

the fee would discourage compliance with regulatory requirements and adherence to requirements. 

 

Fees and charges should be set at full recovery when service could be provided by the public sector, use 

of service is discouraged (e.g. false alarm response by fire or police), or regulatory requirements and 

voluntary compliance is not expected. 

 

Mr. Lamb stated staff is not recommending a fee increase for site plan and subdivision applications and 

this is because the current economic development conditions in Keene do not warrant an increase to fees 

at the moment. Mr. Lamb then turned over the presentation to Ms. Kessler.  

 

Ms. Kessler referred to a handout and indicated the current fee schedule is shown in black. The 

amendments are shown in red.  

 

Site Plan – The fee for Design Review has been eliminated as not many have taken advantage of this 

category. Most applicants pursue Advice and Comment.  

 

They propose changing the formula for how the Site Plan fee is displayed.  Currently it is $250 plus $5 

for every 100 square feet. The amendment is $250 plus $0.05 for every square foot. 

 

10 of 73



Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

May 22, 2017 

Page 9 of 11 

 

They propose eliminating the section referred to as “Request for Waiver of Full Site Plan Review” – 

currently $50.  In place of this option, applicants seeking a waiver from the process would need to pay the 

full site plan application fee, come before the Board and ask for a waiver from all standards.  

 

The fee for printing legal ads is currently a $9 flat fee. However, the average cost is about $26. They 

proposing changing this fee to $25. 

 

They have proposed modifying the fee, Request to extend expiration of a conditionally approved site plan 

– $25, to include, a $50 fee after the first request. 

 

Subdivision Applications – Similar to Site Plan Review, the fee for Design Review has been eliminated. 

The application fee would stay the same for subdivision review.  

 

They propose removing the category “Request for modification to an approved subdivision” which is 

$100. This is not something that is often seen. 

 

They have proposed modifying the fee, Request to extend expiration of a conditionally approved plan – 

$25, to include, a $50 fee after the first request. 

 

The fee for printing legal ads is currently a $9 flat fee. However, the average cost is about $26. They 

proposing changing this fee to $25. 

 

They have proposed removing a specified Recording fee and adding new language stating it would be the 

Registry of Deeds fee.  

 

Administrative Review  

They propose amending the Administrative Review fee of $50 to $125. This is in keeping with the fees 

employed by other communities in NH around the same size as Keene.  

 

Conditional Use Applications – The title of this section of the Fee Schedule is to say Conditional Use 

Permit Applications. 

 

They propose raising the Telecommunication Conditional Use Permit fee from $200 to $300 as there is a 

fair amount of review that goes into these applications.  

 

The fee for a Conditional Use Permit for an Accessory Dwelling Unit would remain at $100. 

 

The fee for a Conservation Residential Development is currently $150 plus $100 per lot – the proposed 

change is $200 plus $100 per lot.  

 

There is no fee currently for the Hillside or Surface Water Protection Conditional Use Permit 

Applications. They propose a fee of $100 for each.  

 

The fee for a Voluntary Merger Application would go from $25 to $50. 

 

They have proposed removing a specified Recording fee and adding new language stating it would be the 

Registry of Deeds fee.  

 

Mr. Stout asked what a Voluntary Merger Application was. Ms. Kessler explained this is when an owner 

of two adjacent lots merges the two lots into one lot. 

 

Mayor Lane noted the current application fee for a commercial site, which is more than 10,000 square 

feet, is $750 and asked whether this would remain the same. Ms. Kessler answered in the affirmative. Ms. 

Kessler stated 11 communities were looked at to determine these rates. Keene is low compared to cities 

like Manchester but staff feels this would not be the time to increase this fee.  

11 of 73



Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

May 22, 2017 

Page 10 of 11 

 

 

Ms. Kessler stated at last month’s meeting staff was asked to look at the time it takes to review 

applications.  She noted that it would be very difficult to develop an accurate number for this calculation 

as the time to review applications varies, and there are multiple staff involved both within and outside of 

the Planning Department.  Ms. Kessler was able to produce a broad estimate of the time spent by a  

Planner to review applications.  She noted that it could be about 15 hours to 20 hours of time on average, 

which could be about $900 - $1,200. A site plan application fee for an project that does not involve new 

construction is $250. 

 

Ms. Kessler referred to the MoCo Arts site which consists of 17,000 square feet. The site plan application 

fee for this site was $1,100 and in this instance the cost of Planner time spent reviewing the application is 

close to what the applicant was charged. On the other hand, the Planner time for reviewing the Savings 

Bank of Walpole site, which is 1,800 square feet in size and had an application fee of $350, was 

approximately $600 greater than the application fee. She indicated if the city was to go into full recovery 

model, a bill for services would need to be produced once the work is complete. It is not possible to 

estimate the costs for review in advance of submitting an application.  

 

Chair Spykman noted the size of a facility seems to determine the cost of an application but that doesn’t 

necessarily equate to staff time and asked whether setting a fee based on square footage would be the 

wisest way to move forward. Ms. Kessler stated Berlin has a set fee; Portsmouth and Hanover are basing 

it on construction costs versus size and felt this is pretty much the same as basing it on square footage. 

Staff feel estimating fees on square footage for this community was the best option. Mr. Lamb stated in 

Portsmouth they have a cap for fees because they saw a potential for fees to be astronomical. Mr. Lamb 

stated what was looked at was not causing an obstacle for entry.  

 

Regarding the Subdivision Plan Application Fee Comparison, Ms. Kessler noted that  most communities 

have a flat fee plus a fee for each lot created. Keene falls closer to the center. This concluded Ms. 

Kessler’s presentation.  

 

Mr. Bohannon asked if credit card payments are being considered. Mr. Lamb stated they have not 

considered this yet. Councilor Hansel asked how much these fees generate in revenue. Mr. Lamb stated it 

was around $8,000 - $12,000. The Councilor stated the only item he would be turned off by, if he was a 

developer it would be the Surface Water Buffer conditional use permit as this requires going to an extra 

meeting plus $100. Mr. Lamb there was discussion as to whether this fee should be folded into the site 

plan fee.  

 

Dr. Cusack asked whether staff follows up with developers about fees. Mr. Lamb stated it has been many 

years since such an exercise has been put in place and agreed it was a good idea.  

 

Ms. Landry asked whether staff hears any comments from developers about these fees. Ms. Kessler stated 

she has not experienced any discontent. Ms. Landry asked whether these changes would make a big 

difference in revenue. Mr. Lamb answered in the negative. 

 

The Chairman asked for public comment. There were no comments from the public. 

 

A motion was made by Mayor Lane that the Planning Board approved the proposed Fee Schedule. The 

motion was seconded by George Hansel and was unanimously approved. 

 

VI. New Business 

Chair Spykman stated often when there is time for public comment, the public has questions rather than 

comments and asked how that should be handled. Mayor Lane stated this is the time for the Board to hear 

from the public and the Board should not be participating in this process. If the public has questions it 

should be treated as rhetorical questions and felt the Board should not be getting into a back and forth 

with the public. Otherwise, it turns into a debate. Mr. Lamb stated staff could always be used to deflect 

such an instance and the Board could say staff will follow-up with the individual who has the question. 

12 of 73



Planning Board Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

May 22, 2017 

Page 11 of 11 

 

 

Mr. Stout stated often times these questions are rhetorical and are intended to make the Board feel 

uncomfortable. 

 

Vice-Chair Barrett asked whether the Board has a different responsibility to a Keene resident versus a 

non-resident Keene. Chair Spykman stated the Board has always left the venue was open regardless of 

where someone was from. The Mayor agreed and added the credibility of a speaker could also depend on 

where they are from, such as someone from Boston addressing issues in Keene. Mr. Lamb stated the risk 

of relevancy could change depending on where they are from. Dr. Cusack stated he was uncomfortable 

when one of today’s speakers criticized one of the applicants. Mr. Lamb stated the Board can always call 

out someone when they are that critical. Councilor Hansel stressed the need for sticking to the 19 

Standards and limiting the scope of discussion especially because this is a quasi-judicial Board where 

there could be legal consequences. The Chair stated he should perhaps give a more thorough introduction 

before the start of each application. 

 

VII. Upcoming Dates of Interest – June 2017 

Planning Board Meeting – June 26, 6:30 PM 

Planning Board Steering Committee – June 13, 12:00 PM 

Joint PB/PLD Committee – June 12, 6:30 PM 

Planning Board Site Visits – June 21, 8:00 AM – To Be Confirmed 

City Council Public Hearing, Marlboro Street project – June 15 

  

The meeting adjourned at 9:03 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Krishni Pahl 

Minute Taker 

 

Reviewed by: Tara Kessler, Planner 

 

13 of 73



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE IS INTENDED TO BE BLANK. 

14 of 73



STAFF  REPORT 
 

K:\BOARDS\PLANNING\Applications\Driveways\183 Arch St - Archway Farm\SR.docx         

Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT FOR DRIVEWAY PERMIT – 183 Arch St., Archway Farm 

 

Request: 

Property owner Mark Florenz, owner of Archway Farms at 183 Arch St., TMP 917-11-028 seeks 

to add a second driveway to the property.  The existing driveway serves the residence. An 

additional driveway is proposed to accommodate the truck deliveries needed for the family’s farm 

business. The 56-acre property is in the Agricultural zoning district. 

 

 

Background: 

Archway Farms has been a local provider of pork products for the Monadnock region since 2015.  

The company describes itself as “A small family farm raising happy, healthy pigs in a natural 

environment.”  The subject is in the Ash Swamp/White watershed and alongside Hurricane Brook 

and within sight of the Cheshire Rail Trail. The property contains a single-family home that was 

built in 1760.  The property also contains a Society of the Protection of New Hampshire Forest 

conservation easement. Surrounding outbuildings support the family’s pig farm business. A 

current driveway serves the family home and has been used to date for all access to the property.  

The family is requesting a second driveway to separate business from family users. 

 

Per Sec. 70-136 (a) “The planning board shall have the authority to review, and approve or 

disapprove all driveway applications for shared drives, multiple curb cuts ….and the planning 

board shall consult with the city engineer prior to rendering a decision on any driveway permit 

application.” 

 

 

Departmental Comments:  

Figure 1: Air photo of Archway Farm property at Arch St. 

Proposed 

area for an 

additional 

driveway 

15 of 73



STAFF  REPORT 
 

K:\BOARDS\PLANNING\Applications\Driveways\183 Arch St - Archway Farm\SR.docx         

Page 2 of 3 

The following is a review of the relevant standards of the City of Keene Code of Ordinances in relation to 

the proposed application. 

 

 

Sec. 70-135. (c)(2) “Driveways must be placed so as to ensure that vehicles entering and exiting 

the driveway have an all season safe sight distance in all directions not only of the road, but 

also of bicycle and pedestrian traffic on the sidewalk. For purposes of this section, an all-

season safe sight distance shall be at least 200 feet in all directions within which there are no 

visual obstructions.” 

 

The Applicant has noted that there are no visual obstructions to the sight distance of the road. The 

next, driveway to the east (a private driveway) is 1,200 LF and approximately 1,100 LF to the 

west (Stearns Road).  

 

 

Sec. 70-135. (c)(3) “For commercial and industrial activities, the use of service roads and/or 

common driveways is encouraged.” 

 

The Applicant notes that there are no service roads or common driveways available to meet his 

business access needs. 

 

 

Sec.70-135. (c)(4) “There shall be no more than one driveway access for each residential lot.” 

 

The applicant is requesting an exception from this standard due to the fact that this is not only a 

residence but also a farm business.  According to Section 70-136 of the City Code, the Planning 

Board has the authority to review exceptions to the driveway standards using the following 

criteria: 

(1) Issuance of the exception will not reduce the safety of pedestrians, bicyclists and 

vehicles using adjacent streets and intersections. 

(2) Issuance of the exception does not adversely affect the efficiency and capacity of 

the street or intersection. 

(3) There are unique characteristics of the land or property which present a physical 

hardship to the requestor. 

(4) In no case shall financial hardship be used to justify the granting of the 

exception. 

 

Sec. 70-135 (c) (6) “Driveways must not block the flow of drainage in gutters or drainage 

ditches or pipes.” 

 

The proposed driveway location has existing culverts on either side and does not block the flow 

of drainage. The City’s engineer has stated that the driveway will not cause an obstruction.  

 

Sec. 70-135 (c) (9) “Industrial, commercial, and multifamily driveways shall not be more than 25 

feet wide at the property line and 50 feet wide at the curbline, unless additional width or lanes 

are required as the result of a traffic study and/or geometric analysis by the planning board.” 

 

The Applicant has proposed a driveway that will be approximately 75’ in length and will not exceed a 

25’ width.  

16 of 73



STAFF  REPORT 
 

K:\BOARDS\PLANNING\Applications\Driveways\183 Arch St - Archway Farm\SR.docx         

Page 3 of 3 

 

Sec. 70-135 (c) (10) “New driveways must be placed so as not to conflict with existing driveways.” 

 

The Applicant has proposed a driveway that will not conflict with the existing residential driveway.  

No other driveways are in the area. 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION FOR APPLICATION: 

 

If the Board is inclined to approve this application, the following motion is recommended: 

 

Approve an application and exception for a second residential driveway on the west side of Arch 

Street (TMP917-11-028) subject to the following conditions:   

 

1. The applicant will procure all necessary permits and approvals prior to commencing 

construction. 

 

 

 

 

 

17 of 73



18 of 73



May 241h, 2017 

W. Rhett Lamb, Director 
Planning Department 
3 Washington St. 
Keene, NH 03431 

Re: Application for second driveway at 183 Arch Street (Archway Farm) 

Dear Mr. Lamb: 

I am applying for a second driveway curb cut for my property, as the current driveway is not satisfactory 

for our farm business (Archway Farm). 

I would like a second driveway dedicated to our farm business for the following reasons: 

• Driveway width: the current historical driveway is too narrow as to allow access for the 

occasional large vehicles modern farming necessitates. This forces large vehicles to load and 

unload on Arch Street, which is a safety concern and an inconvenience for passing motorists. It 

also forces these large vehicles to back down Arch Street in order to turn around, as they cannot 

continue through the low underpass beneath the rail trail. 

• Proximity to house: our residence is located on the same property as our farm business. The 

current driveway is approximately 30 feet from our residence, which is a safety concern as well 

as a noise and dust concern for the large vehicles. 

I would like to retain our current driveway for residential use due to the historical nature of the 

driveway and the property, as well as our desire to segregate business and residential traffic. 

Sincerely, 

Mark Florenz 

Owner/Operator Archway Farm 

183 Arch Street 

Keene, NH 03431 

5P'2--o~-'' 
19 of 73



 

                     
 

A. Existing Drivew
ay 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B. Location of Proposed Drivew
ay 

                         
 

C. Location of Proposed Drivew
ay 

 
 

 
 

 
 

D. Proposed Drivew
ay Sightline W

est 

20 of 73



21 of 73



"°" l'!•.•11!,, '~CE. .9F 
Cl'l;C/;f ft' eflr1Jr;r,. 

. .. '" 

... .. 
'\. 

3 E."f AC/IE!-' 

HATHORN FARM 

KEEN£, NEW HAMPSJ\IRE ----A/if.Ii P.J oe CXCEPTEO FROM c i'ISEflVATllJtl 

~ll !J£MENT. '!J"ORVE'f b/ STCPH(l}c.·- PERRON, LLS 

.Jl./llE 2 G, 2001 ...__.-

F--=--==--_i ·-==:.::~:L __ ------1t- -·=:=1"?== --=l 
S(AL! l1Y F(CT 

I) <#IJ #f,,I 11()

1 

160 ZOIJ 

I 

., ,_ 

By 

.. .p ..... · ..... ~-·, 

,,,.,..... ·r-~~_,.;>;;:I(..,...;,. ~-.
, 

I 
'-. 
/ 
, 
( 

22 of 73



23 of 73



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE IS INTENDED TO BE BLANK. 

24 of 73



STAFF REPORT 
 

K:\BOARDS\PLANNING\Applications\Subdivisions\S-02-17 533 Winchester St\S-02-17 Staff Report.doc         

Page 1 of 3 

S-02-17 – 533 WINCHESTER STREET SUBDIVISION 

Request: 

Applicant Wendy Pelletier of Cardinal Surveying & Land Planning, on behalf of owner, SNG LLC, 

proposes to subdivide the existing 2.88-acre parcel at 533 Winchester Street into two lots.  The site is 

located in the Low Density Zoning District (TMP# 911-26-040). 

 

Background: 

The Applicant proposes to subdivide the lot at 533 

Winchester Street into two residential building lots. The 

existing 2.88-acre parcel is currently located on the west 

side of Winchester Street near its intersection with Buffum 

Road, close to the Swanzey Town line.  

 

There are two residential structures located on the 

property.  One is a 1,913 sf single-family home built in 

1890.  The other is a 444 sf cottage built in 1930.  The 

proposed subdivision would place each building on its 

own lot.   

 

The minimum lot area in the Low Density Zoning District 

is 10,000 square feet (0.23 acres) and the minimum 

frontage requirement is 60-feet. 

 

The proposed subdivision would create a new 2.6-acre lot 

with 60-feet of road frontage, where the cottage is located.  

The existing single-family home will be located on a 0.28-

acre lot with 71.35-feet of frontage.    

 

The Applicant is proposing to discontinue the existing 

driveway and move it approximately 46-feet to the south. 

The new driveway will be shared between the two 

structures. No new development is proposed at this time.  

 

Completeness: 

Since this application is not associated with any new development, the Applicant has requested 

exemptions from having to provide the following technical reports / plans: Grading, Landscaping, 

Lighting, Drainage, and Traffic. After reviewing this request, Staff has determined that exempting the 

Applicant from submitting this information would have no bearing on the merits of the application.  Staff 

recommends that the Planning Board grant these exemptions and accept the application as “complete.”  

 

Departmental Comments: 

Staff from the City’s Fire, Police, Public Works and Code Departments did not identify any issues with 

this proposal.  

    

Application Analysis: 

The following is a review of the Board’s relevant development standards in relation to the proposed 

application: 

 

1. Drainage: The Applicant has noted on the Subdivision Plan that the proposed driveway will be 

constructed according to City standards, which prevent driveways from directing stormwater onto a 

City street. Driveways also cannot block the flow of drainage in gutters or drainage ditches or pipes.  

25 of 73



STAFF REPORT 
 

K:\BOARDS\PLANNING\Applications\Subdivisions\S-02-17 533 Winchester St\S-02-17 Staff Report.doc         

Page 2 of 3 

The Applicant will need to obtain a Driveway Permit and an Excavation Permit from the City 

Engineer/Engineering Division of Public Works prior to beginning this work. 

   

2. Sedimentation & Erosion Control: No new development is proposed at this time.   

 

3. Hillside Protection:  The Applicant notes that there are no prohibitive or precautionary slopes on the 

site. 

 

4. Snow Storage & Removal: The proposed lots would have ample space for snow storage on site.  

 

5. Flooding: This property is not located within the 100-year floodplain.  

 

6. Landscaping: No new landscaping is proposed at this time.  

 

7. Noise: No noise impacts would be generated as a result of this proposal.  

 

8. Screening: This standard is not applicable to this proposal. 

 

9. Air Quality: No impacts to air quality would be generated as a result of this proposal.  

 

10. Lighting: No new lighting is proposed at this time. 

  

11. Sewer and Water: City sewer and water connections currently service the existing residential 

structures on the property.  

 

12. Traffic:  This standard is not applicable to this proposal. 

 

13. Comprehensive Access Management: The Applicant proposes to relocate the existing driveway off 

Winchester Street approximately 46 feet to the south. This new driveway will be shared between the 

two lots, and the existing driveway will be discontinued.  The new driveway will be approximately 

180’ long and provide direct access to the small cottage, which is to the rear of the single-family 

home, as well as to the existing parking area adjacent to the south side of the single-family home.  

The new driveway will be approximately 8-feet from the neighboring property line. 

 

14. Hazardous & Toxic Materials: The Applicant notes that there are no known hazardous and toxic 

materials on the site.  

 

15. Filling & Excavation:  No filling and excavation is proposed.   

 

16. Wetlands: There are no jurisdictional wetlands located on the property.  

 

17. Surface Waters: There are no surface waters present on the property.  

  

18. Stump Dumps: The Applicant has included a note on the Subdivision Plan that states: “On-site burial 

of stumps from land clearing shall be in accordance with RSA 14-M:1.  Stump burial shall not be 

within 75’ of any public or private water system. The Bureau of Solid Waste shall be notified of any 

intent to bury stumps.” 

  

19. Architecture & Visual Appearance: This standard is not applicable to this proposal. 

 

 

26 of 73



STAFF REPORT 
 

K:\BOARDS\PLANNING\Applications\Subdivisions\S-02-17 533 Winchester St\S-02-17 Staff Report.doc         

Page 3 of 3 

RECOMMENDATION FOR APPLICATION: 

 

If the Board is inclined to approve this application, the following motion is recommended: 

 

Approve S-02-17, as shown on the plan identified as “Subdivision Plan, 911-26-040-0000 533 

Winchester Street Keene, NH 03431” prepared by Wendy S. Pelletier, dated May 17, 2017 at 

varying scales with the following conditions: 

 

1.  Owner’s signature appears on plan prior to signing by Planning Board Chair. 

 

27 of 73



28 of 73



29 of 73



30 of 73



STAFF REPORT 
 

K:\BOARDS\PLANNING\Applications\Site_Plan_Review\SPR-895, Mod. 1 30-42 Production 

Ave\SR_061517.docx         Page 1 of 4 

SPR-895 MODFICIATION 1 - SITE PLAN REVIEW - 30-42 PRODUCTION AVE,  

AUTOPARTS INTERNATIONAL 

 

Request: 

Applicant Jim Phippard of Brickstone Land Use Consultants, LLC, on behalf of owner A. Ranger Curran 

Jr., proposes to build a 3,200 sf addition for warehouse space at the rear of the existing 30,000 sf building.  

The site is 3.08 acres in size and located in the Industrial Zoning District (TMP# 702-01-010). 

 

Background: 

The Applicant is proposing to install a 3,200 sf addition to the existing 30,000 sf CMU (Concrete 

Masonry Unit) building at 30-42 Production Ave. This addition would be warehouse space for Auto Parts 

International, a wholesale auto parts supplier currently occupying 5,000 sf in the existing building.  Its 

location would be to the rear (east) of the building, which is currently occupied by a hard-pack parking 

and delivery area. The image below shows the approximate location of the proposed addition.   

 

 

Completeness: 

The Applicant has requested site-specific exemptions from providing the following technical plan 

requirement: landscaping plan. Staff has determined that exempting the applicant from submitting this 

information would have no bearing on the merits of the application and recommends that the Planning 

Board grant these exemptions and accept the application as “complete.”   

 

Departmental Comments: 

Code: No Issues 

Police: No Issues 

Fire:  Addition will require sprinkler system 

Engineering: Provide sedimentation and erosion control measures on the rear side of the building; 

Provide a summary table showing for an increase or decrease in impervious area for pre- and post-

development conditions; A licensed engineer in the State of NH must stamp final plans.  

 

PROJECT 

AREA 

N 

31 of 73



STAFF REPORT 
 

K:\BOARDS\PLANNING\Applications\Site_Plan_Review\SPR-895, Mod. 1 30-42 Production 

Ave\SR_061517.docx         Page 2 of 4 

Application Analysis: 

The following is a review of the Board’s relevant standards in relation to the proposed application: 

 

1. Drainage: The proposed addition will be constructed in an area that is currently a mix of paving, 

concrete and gravel and has a high runoff coefficient.  The Applicant has submitted a Drainage 

Report that indicates there will be no increase in stormwater runoff from the property as a result of 

this proposal.  The Drainage Report notes that stormwater runoff from the existing building and site is 

directed to the rear (east) of the lot and travels through an undeveloped portion of the lot that contains 

wetlands and a tax ditch. Between the existing wetlands and the edge of the existing parking area 

there is a vegetated (grassy) strip of undeveloped land.  This standard appears to be met.  

 

2. Sedimentation and Erosion Control:  The Applicant proposes to install silt fence in an area to the east 

of the proposed addition between the edge of the existing gravel/hard-pack parking area and the 

nearby wetlands. The Applicant notes that silt fencing will be maintained until all disturbed areas 

have been stabilized.  This standard appears to be met.  

 

4. Snow Storage:  The Applicant has noted that snow will be stored in the grassy area at the edge of the 

existing hard-pack parking area to the east of the proposed addition. Any excess snow will be picked 

up and removed from the site after each snowstorm. This standard appears to be met.  

 

5. Flooding: This property is partially located in the 100-year floodplain; however, no fill or site work is 

proposed to take place in the floodplain.  The eastern portion of the lot is subject to flooding to 

elevation 471.0 as shown on the FEMA FIRM 33005C0266E dated May 23, 2006.  The developed 

portion of the lot is above the 100-year floodplain. This standard appears to be met.  

 

6. Landscaping:  No new landscaping is proposed for the site as part of this application.  As the building 

addition is located entirely to the rear of the building and no additional parking is proposed for the 

site, this standard appears to be met.   

 

7. Noise: No excess noise is expected to be generated from this proposal.  The site is primarily 

industrial, and is not located in close proximity to any residential areas. This standard appears to be 

met.  

 

8. Screening:  The Applicant is proposing to locate a dumpster at the rear of the building addition, 

adjacent to a loading dock.  Bollards would surround the dumpster to prevent any damage from or 

conflicts with vehicles. As this dumpster will be entirely screened from view by the front of the 

building, no screening is necessary. The Applicant proposes to install a new rooftop HVAC for the 

addition, which will be screened from view by the building’s parapet walls. This standard appears to 

be met.  

 

9. Air Quality: No significant impacts to air quality will occur as a result of this proposal.  This standard 

appears to be met.  

 

10. Lighting:  The Applicant proposes to install five wall mounted lights to provide lighting at the 

building addition and the new loading dock.  Each wall-pak will be a full cut-off, dimmable LED 

fixture mounted at a height of either 12 or 15-feet.  The average light levels around the addition will 

be approximately 1.5 footcandles.  These lights will be dimmed to 50% levels after 9:00 p.m. No new 

parking lot lighting will be installed. This standard appears to be met.   

 

32 of 73



STAFF REPORT 
 

K:\BOARDS\PLANNING\Applications\Site_Plan_Review\SPR-895, Mod. 1 30-42 Production 

Ave\SR_061517.docx         Page 3 of 4 

11. Sewer and Water: This property is currently serviced by City water and sewer connections.  The 

Applicant notes that the proposed addition will not require water or sewer service as it is a warehouse 

space.  

 

12. Traffic:  The Applicant notes that the existing workforce of Autoparts International is 9 employees, 7 

of whom are drivers.  With this addition, Autoparts International plans to add up to three more 

employees. The increase in traffic to the site as a result of this proposal is minimal. This standard 

appears to be met.  

 

13. Comprehensive Access Management: This site is located at the end of Production Avenue, which 

does not have sidewalks and is not served by public transit.  Primary access to the proposed addition 

will be from the existing northern entrance, which leads to the rear of the building.  

 

Liberty Utilities, the property owner of the adjacent parcel at 43 Production Avenue, has a temporary 

easement to use the southern entrance of this property (30-42 Production Avenue) to back tractor 

trailers into and out of for access into their temporary CNG facility.  As the proposed addition is at 

the northern end of the building, there should not be any conflict with Liberty Utilities’ vehicles.  

 

The Applicant proposes to install a bicycle rack near the front door of the tenant space occupied by 

Autoparts International.  This standard appears to be met.  

 

14. Hazardous and Toxic Materials:  The Applicant notes that the property owner has no knowledge of 

environmental contamination at this property.  This standard appears to be met.  

 

15. Filling / Excavation:  The Applicant notes that approximately 400 cubic yards of new gravel will be 

hauled to the site, and that excavation and fill normal for the construction of a new building addition 

will occur.  The primary truck routes to the site will be NH Route 9 and NH Route 12 to Production 

Avenue.  

 

16. Wetlands: Wetlands are present on the eastern side of the property.  No direct impacts are proposed to 

wetlands or to the 30’ Surface Water Protection Buffer as a result of this project. However, a portion 

of the proposed addition will be close (approximately 40-feet) to the edge of the wetland area.  The 

Applicant has provided a drainage report that states there will not be an increase in surface water 

runoff as a result of this proposal (see Standard 1 above).  This standard appears to be met.     

 

17. Surface Waters: An existing tax ditch is located on the east side of the property; however, no impacts 

are proposed to this tax ditch or its easement area.  This standard appears to be met.  

 

18. Stump Dumps:  This standard is not applicable to this proposal.  

 

19. Architectural and Visual Appearance: The proposed addition will be constructed of CMU with a flat 

roof.  The CMU will be a beige color that will match the existing building.  As a warehouse space, 

this addition will not have any windows.  There will be one overhead door at the loading dock and 

one egress door at the southeast corner of the addition.  This addition will be consistent with the 

visual appearance of existing surrounding buildings in this industrial area.  Due to its position behind 

the existing building and its location at the end of Production Avenue, this addition will not be highly 

visible.   This standard appears to be met.  

 

 

 

 

33 of 73



STAFF REPORT 
 

K:\BOARDS\PLANNING\Applications\Site_Plan_Review\SPR-895, Mod. 1 30-42 Production 

Ave\SR_061517.docx         Page 4 of 4 

RECOMMENDATION FOR APPLICATION: 

If the Board is inclined to approve this application, the following motion is recommended: 

 

Approve SPR-895, Modification #1 as shown on the plan set entitled “Building Addition for 

Autoparts International 32 Production Avenue Keene New Hampshire 03502” prepared by 

Brickstone Land Use Consultants LLC, on May 19, 2017 and last revised on June 9, 2017  at a 

scale of 1” = 20’; with the following conditions: 

 

1. Prior to signature by Planning Board Chair, Owner’s signature on plan. 

 

 

 

 

34 of 73



CITY OF KEENE I PLANNING BOARD 
SITE PLAN REVIEW I MODIFICATION APPLICATION 

This form must be filled out in its entirety. !fa box is not checked, staff will assume that the information is 
not provided and the application is, therefore, not complete. Incomplete applications will not be accepted 

.- OF' . ··-
,..-:~..J. ~-fr~- ·-

'~·-·· --: Jl;'j·.·_ - ~;.--.. ' ~ .. --_-_ ':_!'i i 

I~- ··· .~ · - - ~:'". I . • 
~ --- .. ' ~ - , ' · - iio ':.J ·-ti'- 11~; I , / (;' . 

- _____ ___,-:~~./ 
forrevie=w=·~~~~~~~~~~~~~-.-..,..,,,.,_--,.~~..,........,.,..._,.,....=..,....~~~~~~~--=~IA!~~-=.. 

Date Received/Date of Submission: Project Name .J.. _ ___ .J - I 
uftJ ~ds.::rn~l'"/KV~tJ/'14< 

, W'd'rt:!/11Ja se. 19~ t.,n · /1 
Tax Map Parcel number(s) 
1 _/Ld. -_Q j_ - _/2 _j_ _Q ~ _Q _() _(2 

Project 
Address: 

.Jo-t/ a. IJ-criudio11 II v'e 

Date of pre-application meeting: 

Date Application is Complete: 

Plano.ing,De.p~nient File.#: 5.fl2-1$<?i5 . _(Q) 1). ' 

Name: A /?!Jn · cr1 Curra.1'1 J1 

Address: //1 JJesf- Sfrerl ee(Jt' AJ/I 
~ Telephone\ Email: 

Acreage/S.F. 
of Parcel: .JOB I /,Jf /,.)"i-, 

Zoning 
District: 

0 
Signature: 

Signature: 

Modifications: Is this a modification to a previously-approved site plan: 0 No 0 Yes: SPR#: Date: 

For those sections of the application that are not affected by the proposed modification to the previously approved site 
plan, you are encoura ed to re uest exem tions in lieu of submittin re uired documents. 

Descriptive Narrative Including 

Bl Type of development ,m Sedimentation Control !?I-Scope/scale of development 

ta-Proposed uses ~ Vegetation ii-Parcel size 

lSI Location of access points N'fh:::i Debris management &.Proposed stormwater, drainage & erosion plan 

:il Any other descriptive information IJ/4o Disposal ro osals for boulders, stumps & debris 

A complete application must include the following 
.. .. 

~ Two (2) copies of completed application forms signed & dated 

jl Two (2) copies of descriptive narrative 

z:I Certified list of all owners of property within 200' 

.fl Two (2) sets of mailing labels, per abutter 

a Plans stamped/signed by reg. professional 

~ Two (2) copies on 8.5" x 11" or 11 '' x 17" 

l4; Three (3) copies of all technical reports 

S.. Two (2) color architectural elevations on 11" x 17" 

2l_ Seven (7) copies on "D" size paper of plans (22" x 36") 'A A check to cover the costs oflegal notice to advertise 

the public hearin , mailing notices f ii:hl9ifiutte(s -,-. 1 ~~ 
f ! ~1 ~~M~~ · 1~26~20~: ·= i il II 
r1.. I 7 ~/ 

r:~~ 1 

Jill Three 3) copies of "D" size architectural elevations (22" x 36") 

K:\Administration ·Planning Department\FORMS\Site_Plan\Site Plan Applicalion.docx 

35 of 73



Site Plan Review Application Narrative 

Auto Parts International 
Proposed Warehouse Addition 

32 Production A venue 
Keene, NH 

May 18, 2017 

Project Narrative 

A. Ranger Curran is the owner ofTMP 007-01-010-0000, a 3.08 acre lot in the 
Industrial District, located at 30-42 Production A venue. The property consists of a 30,000 
sf CMU industrial building with four industrial tenants including Green Mountain 
Electric Supply, Auto Parts International, Pathway Book Service, and Fastenal. Customer 
and employee parking is provided along the west and east sides of the building. Several 
delivery doors and docks are located along the east side of the building. 

Auto Parts International is a wholesale auto parts supplier currently occupying 
5000 sf in the existing building. This proposal will add 3200 sf of warehouse space at the 
rear of the building. The addition will be constructed of CMU colored to match the 
existing building. The existing workforce is 9 employees, 7 of whom are drivers. They 
plan to add up to three more employees with this addition. 

The addition will occupy what is now a hard-pak parking and delivery area on the 
east side of the building. No changes to the north, west and south building elevations are 
proposed. There will be no change in lot coverage and no increase in stormwater runoff 
resulting from this proposal. 

Five wall-paks will provide lighting at the building addition and new loading 
dock. Each wall-pak will be a full cutoff, dimmable LED fixture and mounted at 12 foot 
and 15 foot heights. The average light levels around the addition and at the loading dock 
will be 1.5 footcandles which is appropriate for a low - medium activity area. The lights 
will be dimmed to 50% levels after 9:00 PM. A waiver is requested from providing 
photometrics and a uniformity ratio for the rest of the site since none of the existing lights 
on the rest of the building are being changed and photometrics are not available. 

Waiver Request: 
A waiver is requested from Standard 10. Lighting, Section D.1.b to provide a light 

level uniformity ratio of 4: 1. Since none of the existing lighting is being changed, 
photometrics are not available. 

Waiver criteria: 

a) That granting the waiver will not be contrary to the spirit and intent of 
these regulations; The spirit and intent of the lighting standard is to 
provide adequate lighting necessary for safety, without creating excessive 
lighting onto adjacent properties or into the night sky. This proposal will 

36 of 73



reduce light levels using dimmable, full cutoff LED fixtures. It provides 
the minimum light needed for the safe operation of the loading dock and 
rear egress area. The existing lights on the existing building which are not 
being changed, and under section C. 7 of the standard, they are allowed to 
rema.m. 

b) That granting the waiver will not increase the potential for creating 
adverse impacts to abutters, the community or the environment; 
There will be no adverse impacts to the abutters, the community or 
environment because the addition is located at the rear of the building 
adjacent to the wooded area east of the building. It is not visible from 
production A venue. The full cutoff, dimmable LED fixtures will 
automatically reduce light levels to 50% around the new addition when 
there is no activity. No light is cast onto adjacent properties or onto the 
public rights of way. 

c) That granting the waiver has not been shown to diminish the property 
values of abutting properties. This proposal will not cast light onto 
adjacent properties. It will provide the minimum amount of light for the 
safe use of the property. It will have no impact on adjacent properties and 
therefore will not diminish property values. 

d) Consideration will also be given to whether strict conformity with the 
regulations or Development Standards would pose an unnecessary 
hardship to the applicant. Denial of the waiver will result in an 
unnecessary hardship to the owner. It would require hiring a lighting 
engineer to go to the site and measure existing light levels in a 25 foot grid 
around the existing building; plot the readings; and incorporate them into 
the lighting software to determine the average footcandles and the 
resulting uniformity ratio. Since section C.7 allows the existing lights to 
remain in place, it would serve no purpose to do this. This would cost 
approximately $3,000, and is completely unnecessary. There is no public 
benefit to require this additional expense. 

37 of 73



Site Plan Review Application Narrativi:e 
Auto .Parts International 

Proposed Warehouse Addition 
32 Production Ave. 

Keene, NH 

May 18, 2017 

Development Standards 

1. Drainage - The location of the proposed building addition is at the rear of the 
existing building. The area is now part of the hard-pak parking lot and delivery 
area. There will be no new lot coverage resulting from this proposal. A portion 
of the hard-pak area will be paved to provide loading dock access at the new 
addition. Runoff from this area will continue to sheet drain toward the rear of 
the site into an existing grassy area. A drainage analysis has been provided 
which shows no increase in runoff resulting from this proposal. See attached 
drainage report prepared by Thayer Fellows, PE. 

2. Sediment/Erosion Control - Temporary sediment and erosion control 
measures will be implemented to prevent sediment from leaving the site. These 
measures will include silt fence in appropriate areas along the east side of the 
areas to be disturbed. Sediment and erosion control measures will be maintained 
until all disturbed areas have been stabilized. 

3. Hillside Protection - NI A 

4. Snow Storage and Removal - Snow from the parking areas will be stored 
within grassy areas adjacent to the parking lots. Excess snow will be picked up 
and removed from the site after each snowstorm. 

5. Flooding - The property is partially located in the I 00-year floodplain. The 
eastern portion of the lot is a vegetated wetland area adjacent to an existing Tax 
Ditch and is subject to flooding to elevation 471.0 as shown on FEMA FIRM 
33005C0266E dated May 23, 2006. The developed portion of the lot is above 
the 100-year flood elevation. No fill will be placed and no sitework will occur in 
the floodplain. 

6. Landscaping - No new landscaping Rs proposed. The building addition is 
located entirely within an existing hard-pak parking and delivery area at the rear 
of the building. No additional parking is needed. No existing landscaping is 
being disturbed. 

7. Noise - No excess noise is expected to be generated from this proposal. 

8. Screening - The existing dumpster at the site will be relocated to be at the rear 
of the building addition adjacent to the loading dock. It is not visible from a 

38 of 73



public right of way and no screening is necessary. A new rooftop HV AC wil1 be 
mounted near the center of the addition and will be screened from view by 
building parapets. 

9. Air Quality- N/A 

10. Lighting-Five full cutoff, dimmable LED wall paks will be installed on the 
addition. Two fixtures will be on the north side of the new building addition, 
one at the loading dock, and two will be on the south side. Mounting heights 
will be 12 to 15 feet above grade. They will resuH in an average light level of 
1.5 footcandles. The LED fixture heads come equipped with activity sensors. 
After 5 minutes of no activity the light level is automatically reduced by 50%. 
Any activity will automatically activate the lights to full light levels. This is 
consistent with the light levels recommended for a " low - medium" activity 
area. A fixture cut sheet is provided. A waiver is requested from providing 
photometrics for the entire site since none of the existing lighting is being 
changed. 

11. Sewer and Water - This property is serviced by city water and city sewer. The 
buakting addition is warehouse space which does not require water or sewer 
service. 

12. Traffic - The existing business operates M-F 7:30 AM- 5:50 PM and Saturday 
8:30 AM - 3:30 PM. They currently have 9 employees, 7 of whom are drivers. 
They plan to add 3 new employees (all drivers). They receive truck deliveries 
during normal business hours which include I tractor trailer per week, 
FedEx/UPS deliveries daily, and 2-3 box truck deliveries per week. No increase 
in truck deliveries is expected. The addition of three new delivery drivers will 
not result in a significant increase in traffic on Production Avenue or on Rt. 9. 
No impacts to the safety or capacity at Production A venue and Rt. 9 is expected. 

13. Comprehensive Access Management - There are no sidewalks on Production 
A venue or on Rt. 9. Production A venue is not on the City Express bus route. A 
bicycle rack will be added near the front door of the building. 

14. Hazardous and Toxic Materials - The property owner has no knowledge of 
environmental contamination at this property. 

15. Filling/Excavation - Filling and excavation normal for the construction of the 
new building addition will be performed. Approximately 400 CY of new 
gravels will be hauled to the site. The truck route for this project will be Rt. 9/12 
to Production Avenue. 

16. Wetlands- Wetlands exis~ on the east side of the site. No impacts to existing 
wetlands are proposed. 

39 of 73



!7. Surface Waters-An existing tax ditch is located at the east property line. No 
impacts to the tax ditch are proposed. 

18. Stump Dumps - None 

19. Architecture and Visual Appearance - The new building addition will be a 
CMU structure with a nearly flat roof The CMU will be a beige color to match 
the existing CMU building. The addition is all warehouse space. There are no 
windows. There will be one overhead door at the loading dock and one egress 
door at the southeast comer of the addition. The addition is not visible from 
Production Avenue. It will be visible from Rt. 9, but the distance is over 1000 
feet away. 

40 of 73



41 of 73



42 of 73



43 of 73



15'-0" 

-------'---------

f 
f 
f 

I I 

CONCRETE ~SONRY BLOCK 
Cct.OR; TAN 
TD MATCH EXISTING BUL O!NG 

@ SOUTH ELEVATION 
SCALE: 1/4" " I '-0" 

/ L"-u· 

FU..L CUT ·OFF WALL PAK ANOOIZED Al.l.M COPING 
CCX.OR: DARK BRONZE: 
TO MAiCH EXISTING 

I 
I 
I 

------------------. f 

51'-0' 
-----------------, ~---------------------------------------------------------------------------~ L----------------------------------------------------------------------------..J 

ANCOIZED ALUH COPING 
COLOR: DARK BRONZE 
Tn MllTl";M EXl~Tlf\Jr. 

---- -------------------------. ------i ----------·----·----·-·-·--·--···--·-----·------------· 
~------------~~-----------------< 

rl-------------------~ ---------- - ---------·- ------------·- -- -- ·----- --·--- - _ _Jl 

L--------------------~-----------------------------------------------j 

'i l CD ~~A~:~ ,;z..E~~.~~~N r------------------
rL--------------~-----------------------------------------------------------..J r----------------
L---------------~------------------------------------------------------------..J 

9 
N 

I 

! 

I 

~ 

ISSUE LOG 
DATE: FOR: 
S~ I S-17 SPR 

0 

~~ 3 

~~ 
~ 

i ~ 
*~ .. ~ •o j ~ 1r' ~~ ~~ ~ --< .§. ~ 

ui ; ~ ~ f' ~ ~ 

I :> . ~ 
u ' • ~ s. ~ ~ 
8~~ ~~; ~ ~ 
~-~ ~~ ! ~ ~ ~ ::>: 0 

~ 
~ ~;g ~ ~ ,.; ~ • :: ~ g ~ ~ •id ~ ~ 1{ ~ ~ 0 " ~ I~ ~ 

i' !>J u 0 

~ o( in~ ... . 
;~j ~h~ ~ ~ l~~ ~ ~~~ ! Q 

:=~~ 

~ 

0 

----c 

..0 

"'Cl 

2S z 
oo 
<( f-
o u 
w ::::> 
LJ') D 

~I~ 0 a... 
0::: -1 a... tr) 

·-
-
-

• 
-

~ 

: 
-,: 

-N 

~ 

~ 

0 
_j 

::> 
m 

SCALE: 

AS NOTED 

SHEET NUMBER 

A l 

. 
@ 

~ 

44 of 73



PO Box 428, County Road 

Walpole, NH 03608 

May 18, 2017 

David Bergeron 
Brickstone Masons, Inc 
185 Winchester Street 
Keene, NH 03431 

THAYER R. FELLOWS 
REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER (603) 756-4811 

Civil - Structural trifel@myfairpoint.net 

Re: Stonnwater Management, Production Ave Industrial Building, Keene, NH 

As you requested, I have reviewed the site plan for the proposed 3200 SF building addition to the 
existing building at 32 Production Avenue in Keene, NH. I have reviewed the existing conditions on 
site as well as the proposed addition area. The addition is to be constructed on the rear of the existing 
building in an area that is currently a mix of paving, concrete and gravel. The existing building is 
30,000 SF and is on the north side of production avenue. The building is divided up into separate tenant 
spaces. The proposed expansion is to accommodate one of the tenants that needs to expand. 

The existing building is located close to the front of the lot. Behind the building is a large 
improved surface for parking and truck deliveries. To the rear of that there is an undeveloped portion of 
the lot that contains wetlands and floodplain. Runoff from the existing building and site is directed to the 
rear of the lot and travels through the existing wetland and into the drainage ditch to the rear. 

The proposed addition will all be built an area that is hard pack gravel and has a high runoff 
coefficient. The existing soils in this area are Raynham-Wareham Complex which has a very limited 
ability to absorb water and therefore has a high runoff coefficient. 

Due to the presence of the existing gravel in the development area and the high runoff coefficient 
of the existing soils, the post development runoff is the same as the pre-development runoff. The current 
predevelopment runoff from the property is 4. 79 CFS for the 50 year storm and the post development 
runoff will be 4.79. Therefore, no additional storm water controls are recommended. 

lfyou or others have comments or questions, please feel free to contact me. 

45 of 73



DESCRIPTION 

The Ga ileon '" wall LED !uminaire's appearance is complementary w ith 
the Galleon area and site luminairn bringing a modern architectural 
styie to lighring applications. Flexibie mounting options accommodate 
wall surfaces in both an upward and downward configuration. The 
Gailecn family of LE!) products deliver exceptional performance with 
patented, high-efficiency AccuLED Optics"' , providing uniform and 
energy conscious lighting for parking lots. building and security lighting 
applications. 

SPECIFICATION FEATURES 

Construction 
Driver enclosure thermaily 
isolated from optics for optimal 
thermal performance. Heavy 
wall aluminum housing die-cast 
with integral external heat sinks 
to provide superior structural 
rigidity and an IP66 rated housing. 
Overall construction passes a 1.5G 
vibration test to ensure mechanical 
integrity. UPLIGHTING: Specify 
w ith the UPL option for inverted 
mount uplight housing w ith 
additional protections to maintain 
IP rating. 

Optics 
Choice of thirteen patented, high· 
efficiency AccuLED Optics. The 
optics are precisely designed to 
shape the distribution maximizing 
efficiency and application spacing. 
AccuLED Optics create consistent 
distributions with the sca lability 
to meet customized application 
requirements. Offered standard in 
4000K (+/- 275K} CCT and minimum 
70 CAL Optional 3000K, 5000K 
and 6000K CCT. Greater than 90% 

DIMENSIONS 

lumen maintenance expected at 
60,000 hours. Available in standard 
lA drive current and optional 
T200mA, 800mA, and 600mA drive 
currents. 

Electrical 
LED drivers are mounted for ease 
of maintenance. 120-277V 50i60Hz. 
347V or 480V 60Hz operation. 
4SOV is compatible for use with 
480V Wye systems only . Drivers 
are provideo standard w ith 0-1 OV 
dimming. An optional Eaton 
proprietary surge protection 
module is available and designed 
to withstand 10kV of t ransient 
;ine surge. The Galleon Wall 
LED luminaire is suitable for 
operation in ·30°C to 40°C ambient 
environments. For applications 
with ambient temperatures 
exceeding 40°C, specify the HA 
[High Ambientt option. Emergency 
egress options for .zo•c ambient 
environments and occupancy 
sensor available. 

I I I 
~ 111111111 t:te:J 
L_ 15·11116" [400mml__j L 12.1/8" i308mml__j 

HOOK-N-LOCK MOUNTING 

BATTERY BACKUP ANO THRU· BRANC H BACK BOX 

L_15-1 5/:6" f3SBmmi '3 

5-13/64" 
(1 59mml 

! . , ~ ,, 5~ 

j 43mmt 

McGraw-Edison 

Mounting 
Gasketed and zinc plated rigid steel 
mounting attachment fits directly 
to 4" i-box or wall with the Galleon 
Wall "Hook-N-Locl<." m echanism 
for quick installation. Secured with 
two captive corrosion resistant 
b lack oxide coated alien head set 
screws which are concealed but 
accessible from bottom of fixture. 

Finish 
Housing finished in super durable 
TGIC polyest er powder coat 
pa int, 2.5 mil nominal thickness 
for superior protection against 
fade and wear. Standard colors 
include black, bronze, grey, 
white, dark platinum and graphite 
metallic. RAL and custom color 
matches available. Consu lt the 
McGraw-Edison Architectural 
Colors brochure for the complete 
selection. 

Warranty 
Five-year warranty. 

~-www.~iesiyn l1 gh:s.org 

GWC GALLEON 
WALL LUMINAIRE 

1-2 Light Squares 

Solid State LED 

WALL MOUNT LUMINAIRE 

CERTIFICATION DATA 
UUcUL listed 
LM79 : LM80 Compliant 
ll'tl6 Housing 
ISO 9001 
OesignLights ConsortiumN Qualified* 

ENERGY DATA 
Electronic LED Driver 
>0.9 Power Facto r 
<20o/o Total Harmonic Distortion 
12C-277V!SO & 60Hz. 347Vi60Ht . 
~OV'60Hz 

·30"C Minimum Temper.=nure 
40"C A.mbier.t Temperanue Rating 

[r- l'? ;-:;:-.. .-·~ {'\ ~ -, C'"> r~ 
s ,H/PP:1NG. DATA · u '-"· · ( 
A~pro~im•te Nfit Weigh'f· \ • j 2\r.'. '12.2'.gs , 1 • f u MAY 1 9 LG\1 L l 
~ ______ J 
r ~j:_......::-..::::--ro514o1'7E"N' 

(l . .. ,.,.,._Q 20 "6 ·tJ9 · ~ 5 -: 4:49:49 

46 of 73



STAFF REPORT 
 

Page 1 of 3 

SPR-07-17 - SITE PLAN REVIEW – 143 West Street, Carriage House Addition 
 
Request: 
Property owner 143 West Street, LLC is proposing to construct a two-story addition “carriage house” that 
will be constructed alongside the existing, two-story residence/office structure on their 0.40-acre lot, TMP 
002-02-012, 143 West Street.  
 

Background: 
The existing structure on this parcel was built in 1837.  It was built as a home but has been used as 
commercial office space for approximately 20 years.  The parcel is a corner lot at Colorado Street and 
currently has two curb cuts.  An arced drive provides access between the building and six parking spaces, 
one being an accessible space with an access aisle.   
 
Two variances were granted by Keene’s Zoning Board of Adjustment in spring of 2017. ZBA 17-02 
allowed mixed use with office and a single family dwelling unit while ZBA 17-03 allowed for 12 parking 
spaces to keep two large shade trees.  
 
The owner wishes to construct a residence to enable “walking” to work. The resulting building is a two-
story carriage house with the living space upstairs. The downstairs will contain two parking spots and 
storage space. The building is designed with a small cupola, a balcony and design details that relate to the 
original structure’s historic character.  
 
The new structure will be a two-story, wood-framed, with a pitched roof topped with a small cupola.  
 
Completeness: 
The applicant has exemptions from items not present on the site or not applicable. Staff 
recommends that the Planning Board grant these applications and accept the application as 
“complete.”  
  

 

 
 

PROPOSED 
BUILDING AREA 

47 of 73



STAFF REPORT 
 

Page 2 of 3 

Departmental Comments: 
Code:  No issues 
Police Dept.:  No issues 
 
Fire Dept.:  OK as submitted. 
 
Engineering Dept.:  
1) Show the location of a temporary construction entrance into the site.  
2) Confirm that all lines and symbology used in the drawings are defined in the legend for proposed 

and existing conditions (e.g. water, sewer, trees, silt fence, etc.) 
3) Provide seasonal high ground water table elevations for proposed infiltration trenches.  

 
Application Analysis: 
The following is a review of the Board’s relevant standards in relation to the proposed application: 
 
1. Drainage: 

a. Impervious Area Increase - The additional 1,500 SF of new building is proposed to replace the 
current parking lot. While the new site plan removes one of the curb cuts along with that portion 
of driveway pavement that is no longer needed.  The result is that the project increases the 
impervious area by approximately 600 SF.  

b. Per PB Standard 1.b.a. The proposed site’s proposed new drainage will include a stone infiltration 
strip to catch roof runoff from the new structure and a dry basin will be installed in the new 
parking lot at the end of an infiltration trench. 

 
The net result is that the post development runoff will decrease by 0.60 CFS for a 50-year storm. This 
standard has been met.  

 
2. Sedimentation and Erosion Control:  The site is fairly level with a slight slope towards Colorado 

Street however the proposed project will reduce the site runoff from the property. Per PB Standard 
2.a. The proposed stormwater management onsite utilizes both an infiltration trench to filter 
stormwater and contaminants as well as a stone infiltration strip to infiltrate roof runoff. This 
standard appears to be met.  

 
4. Snow Storage:  Per PB Regulation 4.a.  Snow storage is not currently shown on the site plan.  The 

application states that snow will be stored “within grassy areas adjacent to the parking lot”.  This 
standard appears to be met.  

 
6. Landscaping:   

a. No additional landscaping is required as part of this project; the required parking lot landscaping 
being 146 SF and the provided landscaped area being 303 SF. However, several flowering shrubs 
and ten arborvitae will be planted to provide seasonal interest and screen the new parking spaces 
from Colorado St.  

b. Per PB Standard 6. Staff has requested that a tree protection detail be added to the drawing set to 
provide protection for the three, existing large shade trees present on the site adjacent to the 
construction and deconstruction areas. 

This standard appears to be met. 
 

10. Lighting:  The applicant is proposing both wall-pak units as well as three, LED pole lights.  All of 
these fixtures are full cut-off and proposed to be mounted at the heights specified within our planning 
Board standards. The lighting levels achieve a uniformity ratios that, as well, meets the PB standard. 

48 of 73



STAFF REPORT 
 

Page 3 of 3 

The application states “After 9:00 PM, light levels will be reduced by 50% to an average of 1.15 
footcandles…” The Board may want to discuss with the applicant lighting after 10 PM given the PB 
standard 10.C.6. which states “outdoor lighting shall not be illuminated between the hours of 10:00 
PM and 6 AM.   

 
12. Traffic:  Per PB Regulation 12.b. the proposed additional of a single-family residence will not 
substantially increase trips to and from the site. In fact the owner will be living in the created unit. This 
standard has been met.  
 
13. Comprehensive Access Management:   

a. Per PB Standard 13.c.1. The proposed project improves that site by removing a curb cut. 
b. Per PB Standard 13.a. Sidewalks exist on either side of West Street as well as on the east side of 

Colorado St.  West Street has City Express stops.   
This standard has been met. 
 

19. Architectural and Visual Appearance:    
a. Per PB Standard 19.C.2. The site currently has two curb cuts that create an arch-shaped driveway.  

The proposed project however, will remove the southern curb cut and enlarge the remaining curb 
cut to accommodate two-way traffic. All of the proposed parking is to the rear and side of the 
proposed building. 

b. Per PB Standard 19.3. As mentioned earlier, the proposed new structure is a two-story, wood-
framed structure with a cupola and a front porch.  The structure’s architectural aspects harken 
back to traditional elements with gable ends, large windows, a traditional barn doors as well as a 
cupola. 

This standard appears to be met. 
 

RECOMMENDATION FOR APPLICATION: 
If the Board is inclined to approve this application, the following motion is recommended: 

 
Approve SPR-07-17 as shown on the plan set entitled “Proposed Addition for Single Family 
Residency” prepared by Brickstone Land Use Consultants, LLC, dated May 19, 2017. 
at a scale of 1” = 20’; with the following conditions: 
 

1. Prior to signature by Planning Board Chair, Owner’s signature on plan. 
 

2. Prior to signature, submittal security for landscaping, site stabilization and an “as-
built” plan in a form and amount acceptable to the Planning Director and City 
Engineer. 
 

49 of 73



CITY OF KEENE I PLANNING BOARD 
SITE PLAN REVIEW I MODIFICATION APPLICATION 

Fl 
Date"Received/Date of Sribmis.sion: '00'· · , 

~)'------ -----· 
- - • .. ·------ ..£..- . ...... ..z,. ••• .., .... _._._.., 

Project 
Address: 

1¥.3 t.1e~1.s1 

Acreage/S.F. +/ 

of Parcel: .'/o /- I tZf.fB 

Zoning 
District: 

OPP le£ 

-Date Application is Complete: 
PR 07-11 

Name: 

Address:1'/'3 

~ Telephone\ Email: 
0 

Name: 

Address: I IS lllcJ.k.:,-Ter JI 
...... 
....... 

Signature: 

Modifications: Is this a modification to a previously-approved site plan: 0 No ~ Yes: SPR#: Date: 

For those sections of the application that are not affected by the proposed modification to the previously approved site 
plan, you are encouraged to re uest exem tions in lieu of submittin required documents. 

Descriptive Narrative Including 

Ja Type of development fa Sedimentation Control a Scope/scale of development 

~ Proposed uses Zl Vegetation tf Parcel size 

Ill Location of access points ,.J IA D Debris management }2il Proposed storm water, drainage & erosion plan 

. Any other descri tive information ~~ D Di osal ro osals for boulders, stum s & debris 

A complete application must include the following 

!II Two (2) copies of completed application forms signed & dated 

]Q Two (2) copies of descriptive narrative 

a Ce!rtified list of all owners of prqperty within 200' 

~ ~wo (2) sets of mailing labels, per abutter 

~ Seven (7) copies on "D" size paper of plans (22" x 36") 

Three 3) co ies of "D" size architectural elevations 22" x 36") 

K:IAdministralion -Planning Department\FORMS\Site_Plan\Site Plan Application.docx 

~ Plans stamped/signed by reg. professional 

-~ Two (2) copies on 8.5'' x 11" or 11" x 17" 

;If Three (3} copies of all technical reports 

.tiil Two (2) color architectural elevations on 11" x 17" 

~ A check to cover the costs of legal notice to advertise 

notices out to abutters 

1.26.2015 

50 of 73



Site Plan Review Application Narrative 
143 West Street, LLC 

Proposed Residential Addition 
143 West Street 

Keene, NH 

May 18, 2017 

Project Narrative 

143 West Street, LLC is the owner ofTMP 002-02-012-0000, a 0.40 acre lot in 
the Office District, located at 143 West Street. This is a comer lot at the northwest corner 
of West Street and Colorado Street. The lot contains an existing two story brick building 
which is occupied by Donahue Law. There are six existing parking spaces accessed via a 
circular driveway with two curbcuts on Colorado Street. 

The owner wishes to construct a two story addition at the rear of the existing 
building. The addition will have a 1520 sf footprint and will consist of a two car garage 
and a storage area on the ground floor, and a single family residence on the second floor. 
The residence will be occupied by the owner who will use this property as a live-work 
residence. Twelve on-site parking spaces will be provided. 

Two variances were granted by the Keene Zoning Board of Adjustment in March 
2017. ZBA 17-02 is a variance allowing mixed use with office and single family dwelling 
on the lot. ZBA 17-03 is a variance allowing 12 parking spaces where 16 spaces are 
required by zoning. By reducing the number of parking spaces, it allows a 24" Ash tree 
and a 28" Cherry tree on the Colorado Street frontage to be preserved. The mature trees 
are an important feature helping to maintain the historic appearance of the property. 
Copies of the variance approvals are attached. 

The existing circular driveway will be removed and the southernmost curbcut on 
Colorado Street will be closed. The northernmost curbcut will remain and will be 
widened to provide two-way travel. The curbcut will also be shifted slightly to the south 
to accommodate added parking spaces at the rear of the lot. 

All parking spaces are located to the side and rear of the building. A handicap 
parking space is located adjacent to the office entrance with a covered accessible ramp 
leading to the entry porch. 

The building addition is designed as a carriage house. It will be two-story, wood 
framed, with a pitched roof topped with a small cupola. A small second floor balcony 
provides visual interest on the east building elevation. The carriage house design is 
appropriate and in-keeping with the historic appearance of the existing brick building, 
and complements the entrance to the residential neighborhood on Colorado Street. 

51 of 73



Site Plan Review Application Narrative 
143 West Street, LLC 

Proposed Residential Addition 
143 West Street 

Keene, NH 

May 18, 2017 

Development Standards 

1. Drainage - All of the existing concrete pavement is being removed and the 
southernmost leg of the existing circular driveway is being removed. The new 
main parking area will be paved and will be reconfigured and sloped to drain to 
a new drywell located within the parking area. This drywell will provide 
stormwater infiltration for up to a 50-year design storm. The remaining 
driveway and handicap parking area will be sloped to drain into the existing 
grassy areas. A new infiltration strip will be provided along the west side of the 
new building addition. This will collect and infiltrate roof runoff and prevent 
any increase in runoff from leaving the site. See attached drainage report 
prepared by Thayer Fellows, PE. 

2. Sediment/Erosion Control - Temporary sediment and erosion control 
measures will be implemented to prevent sediment from leaving the site. These 
measures will include silt fence in appropriate areas along the west, north and 
east sides of the areas to be disturbed. Sediment and erosion control measures 
will be maintained until all disturbed areas have been stabilized. 

3. Hillside Protection - NI A 

4. Snow Storage and Removal - Snow from the parking areas will be stored 
within grassy areas adjacent to the parking lot. Excess snow will be picked up 
and removed from the site after each snowstorm. 

5. Flooding - The property is not located in the 100-year floodplain. 

6. Landscaping-New screen plantings will be added along the Colorado Street 
frontage to screen the rear parking area. 10 Arbor Vitae will be planted @ 4 feet 
on center to provide a year-round visual screen. On the west side of the parking 
area, 4 Purple Lilacs will be planted. Three existing Ash trees (24" - 28" 
caliper) will be preserved as well as an existing Cherry tree (28" caliper). An 
existing Weeping Cherry tree will be relocated to an expanded planting area at 
the building entrance. New plantings along the east side of the building will 
include a Little Kim Hibiscus and a Casino Gold Juniper. The existing 
foundation plantings along the east and south sides of the existing building will 
remain. Where the existing driveway is being removed, the area will be loamed 

52 of 73



and seeded. 146 sf oflandscaping is required for compliance with section 102-
1230 of the zoning ordinance and 330 sf of landscaping is provided. 

7. Noise - No excess noise is expected to be generated from this proposal. 

8. Screening - There will be no dumpster on the site. A small ground-mounted 
HVAC unit will be located to the rear of the building addition and be screened 
by an existing 6' high solid wood fence. The new parking spaces will be 
screened from Colorado Street by an Arbor Vitae hedge to be planted along the 
east side of the property, north of the driveway. 

9. Air Quality-NIA 

10. Lighting- One LED, full cutoff wall pak will be installed on the north side of 
the new building addition at a 10-foot mounting height. Three, full cutoff LED 
pole lights will be installed at mounting heights of 8 feet, 12 feet and 15 feet. 
The colonial style fixtures will be placed adjacent to the HC parking space, 
adjacent to the curbcut and at the north end of the parking spaces. They will 
result in an average light level of2 footcandles with a uniformity ratio of 3.33. 
The LED fixture heads are programmable and allow for an automatic reduction 
in light levels at specified times. After 9:00 PM, light levels will be reduced by 
50% to an average of 1.15 footcandles with a uniformity ratio of 3.83. This is 
consistent with the light levels recommended for a "low - medium activity'' 
area. A fixture cut sheet is provided. 

11. Sewer and Water - This property is serviced by city water and city sewer. The 
building addition will use new service lines from Colorado Street. Adequate 
capacity exists for this proposal. 

12. Traffic-The existing office use is a small law firm with three employees and 
generates very little traffic. The office hours are Monday through Friday, 9AM 
- SPM. The addition of a single-family residence, to be occupied by the owner 
of the law firm, will not add significant traffic. In fact, as a live-work property, 
it may reduce traffic at the site. The location on West Street provides the 
opportunity for the residents to walk to restaurants, banks and other businesses. 
No impacts to the safety or capacity at West Street and Colorado Street is 
expected. 

13. Comprehensive Access Management- Sidewalks exist on both sides of West 
Street and on the east side of Colorado Street at this location. This location is 
also on the City Express bus route. Bicycles can be accommodated on the porch 
to the left of the main entry. 

14. Hazardous and Toxic Materials - The property owner has no knowledge of 
environmental contamination at this property. 

53 of 73



15. Filling/Excavation- Filling and excavation normal for the construction of the 
new building addition will be performed. Approximately 125 CY of new 
gravels will be hauled to the site. The truck route for this project will be Rt. 9/12 
to West Street. 

16. Wetlands -None. 

17. Surface Waters -None. 

18. Stump Dumps - None 

19. Architecture and Visual Appearance-The new building addition will be a 
carriage house design to complement the existing historic building. It will be a 
two-story wood framed structure with a steep pitched roof. The new building 
addition will be sided with light gray, vertical Azek siding with dark gray Azek 
trim. The roofing will be dark gray metal roofing. Windows at the second-floor 
level will have six over six grillwork, matching the window treatment on the 
existing house. The entry doors and overhead doors will be painted red. A small 
cupola will be installed on the roof of the addition and will have a copper roof 
and weathervane. Overall, the proposed carriage house architecture maintains 
the historic appearance of the property. 

54 of 73



tr-'-T"".......... · r 

......... 

..... . ~-~· -· 

CUSTOM BARN DOOR 

1XMX3 A2EK FACIAS 

1 X1 0 VERTICAL SIDING 

l+-~~~~~~~~~~-fPiR~O~P~O~S~EOnAAO~orn1TiT1no~· .• ~~~~~~~~~~~--~~~---o1 

FRONT ELEVATION 
AA•L! 11J0" 11 J'=P" 

SPR-07-17 

D 

0 z 

z 
0 ...... 
~ 
> w 
_J 

w 
fz 

g ~ 
~ 
:I: 

"' 

UJ 
(.!) z 
<( 0 ............ 
er: l
o:'. ..... 
<( 0 
uo 
w <( 

z '.:) UJ 

~ ~~ 
~ zo 
~ QI 
ti Q 
!!I 

~ 

SCALE: 
BY---:=:-.:==--==-·n=====t 

AS SHOWN 

1 BID DOCUMENTS 
: NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

55 of 73



I 
l. i 

I 
l I I 
I 

I 
1 I 

I 

I l 1 

I I 
I 

COMPOSITE RAILING SYSTEM I 

RIGHT 51DE ELEVATION 

''!-!-'-~- METAL ROOF VENT CAP 
-..,-;-i--METAL ROOFING 

u-++.,+,...;--n--1X6/1X3 AZEK FACIAS 

1X10 VERTICAL SIDING 

5/4 X 6 AZEK CORNEA BOARDS 

5/4 X 4 AZEK TRIM W/ 
~+t<----AZEK HISTORIC WINDOW 

SILL 

,!--1-+-r+---5/4 X 8 AZEK TRIM 

514 X 4 AZEK TRIM 

COPLAY 
COACHMAN 

r-rii----COLLECTION 
~:;:;:;::;~::;:;:nilf DESIGN #21 
I~ INSULATED DOOR 

LEFT 51DE ELEVATION 

SPR - 07-17 

D 
w 
~ 
0 

2 

! 
0 

w 
0 -[/) 
t~ wo 
_J .... 

o~ 
Z> 
<( w 
I- u1 

~ 0 
~ ...... 
w a:: 
J: 

"' 

w 
<.9 z 
<( 0 .......... a:: lex: .... 
5g 
w <( 

z '.:) UJ 
0 :r: (/) 
~ <( :::::> 
§zo 
ill 0 :r: 
0 0 
hl 
~ 

8 SCALE: 
Y-.:=:=:~=-====::=:tifl====I 

AS SHOWN 

BID DOCUMENTS I 
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION I 

56 of 73



--
-

-
zm

 
0

6
 

-
i
c
 

"T
l 
0 

O
o

 
:o

c
 

os
: 

o
m

 
z
Z

 
en

 -
i 

-i
(J

) 
:0

 
c 0 -i

 
6 z ~

)>
 

t/
) 

t/
) ~ 

t/
) ~
 

r m
 

O
J 

'<
 

-t
 

N
 

N
 

...._
_ 

N
 

0 .... .....
 

"' 
c:::

::::
:: 
-
~
 

c=
:.

~-
8g
 

S
: 

fFl
iiJ 

I 

~
 
(
~
 

.....
. 

Fu
1J

 "
 

¢
C

 
,....

.., 
0 ---.....i 

I::
'::

:::
; 

r:
:-

::i
 

-
-
:
J
 

• .... .....
. 

ll-
-,I':

;i I
 •·

 
G
-=

::
~:

:-
11

 a
 

D
R

A
W

IN
G

S 
'>

R
O

V
ID

ED
 B

Y
: 

I~ >
 

'41
 

m
 

-
r m

 ~ I::! I(
) ,z
 

~ 
ll

\'
9~

1D
€ 

ll
Qf

SS
>l

l~
 ~
~
 

30
3 

LE
Y

D
EN

 R
O

A
O

 
G

RE
EN

Fl
EL

D
, 

M
A 

01
30

1 
4

1
J-

1
1

2-
2
n

6
 

-· -
---

-·-
-·-

-·
--

--
--

--
-
--

· .. 
...

 -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
+

 ., 
==

---
-=

--
-=

-:
:=

.=
==

---
=-
:-
-=

:-~
: 

--
--

--
--

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

--
-
-
-·

 ··-
--

--
···

-
-
--

· -
-

· 
-

---
-··

-·
 -

--
·-

·-..
 ·---

---·
--

·· 
t
-
-
-
~
-
-
-
-
-
-
~
-
-
~
~

:::
:=:

:~
-
=
=

=-
==

--
-=

-~
 

·-
--

--
--

·
 ~

 
-
-

--
-
-

--
--

--
-

-· 
1
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
f
l
~

:.
:.

:.
__~
~

~
C.:

.::
::.

...
-" 

1
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
1

t
o:

.-=
:-

-_
.-

,:
::

:.
:.

=:
::::

.::
.:c

:-:
::.c

 __
 

1
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
4
1

-:-
__::

:__-
-:::

:;:
·
:
·
=
~-

-=
-=

--
=:
:.:

-_:
::;

 __
 

·-
-
-

t
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
~
t

:.=
:
_
_
..
::
::
::
.=
::
=
 

I
-
-
-

--
--·

 -
t
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
4
·
~
~
=-

=-
--

==
-=

--
-=

--
-=

--

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
4
1

-~
:
-_
-:
::
-:
~-
=-
-
-
=
 

t
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
4
1
-

.-
--:

:::
:--

--:
::.

.-:
:-:

c--
=

c:
:~
.:

" 
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-
~
-

-
-
~
-

--
- -

._
_ _

_ _
 

-
~
~
=
=
=
 

It
--

--
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

ll-
--
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

·=
~

::.
...7

_·-
-
:
:
-
-
~-

·-
· 

=-.
..::-

-=
==

..:
::.:

--
-:

 
H
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
~
~
-
-
'
I
 F

""
 

-
. 

-
-

-
-
-

-
-

E
::
==

=:
::

=-
-
=
:
-
~-
==

==
-

=1
1+

t+n
= 

-
---

i
-
-
-
-
-
-

=
=

1
IT

T
D

M
 ~=

:=
:=
--
==

-==
---

==
::

ii
 

* 
l'r

 
Cl

1u
uu

11
u.l

 I~~
~~

~:
~~
~
=: 

A
A

A
tt

l 

m
m

 

mE
I

B
 

ftE
E1

 6
: J~r

H 
Hfl

!i 
.rn

rm
ur

' 
fr 

1-'
 

AI
Bl1

lliI
D 

1r
1r

!j
·1

 

ftJ
l1

J 
ftJ

l1
J 

ftm
J 

ftJ
l1

J 

ftJ
l1

J 
ftm

] 
.f

,., 

lli 

~ 
m

m
 
~
 

f;
 

I tlm
n 

PR
O

JE
C

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
: 

D
O

N
A

H
U

E
 C

A
R

R
IA

G
E

 
H

O
U

S
E

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

 

SH
E

ET
 T

IT
LE

: 

R
E

A
R

 E
LE

V
A

T
IO

N
 

• 

D
A

TE
 
11

0 
1

1
--

-+
--

--
--

--
1

--
--

-4
--

1
 

N
O

. 
I D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 

B
Y

 

57 of 73



---------·------- ------pROPOSEDADDITIO@--------------~ 

FRONT ELEVATION 
!>fALE: !/IQ" • 1'-0" 

SPR - 07 - 17 . ,. 
By 

58 of 73



I 

I j I 

J 

I . } 

. I 
· ~~ --·--!·---·-·-- -- ··------ -----~PROPOSED ADDITIO '- Nf-- --- --·-

s p R - 0 7 -1 7 · .:{• 

mrr ff' ff n \j [E~ 

59 of 73



~ R·l•-1 7 . :I 

RIGHT 51DE ELEVATION 
SC.ALE:: 1/B"=1'-Q" 

60 of 73



61 of 73



62 of 73



63 of 73



64 of 73



65 of 73



66 of 73



-----

INFILTRATION 
TRENCH (SEE 

DETAIL) 

TONF P()ST-...... 

1 43 WEST STREET LLC 
143 WEST STREET 
KEENE, NH 03431 

JS 
A=J,580 
TcL=40 
S=.01 

4$ 
A=9,980 

0 TcL=200 
- S=.01 

ID) rickstone 
lQ) Land Use Consultants, LLC 
185 Winchester Slreet, Keene, NH 03431 
Phone: (603) 357-0116 

-, 

' ' ' ' ' ' I 
i 
i 
¥ 
~ 
~ 
I 
I .J •;,;; 

PROPOSED ADDITION 
1 43 WEST STREET 
KEENE, NH 03431 

67 of 73



DESCRIPTION 

The patented Lumark Crosstourv LED Wall Pack Series of luminaries 
provides an architectural style w ith super bright, energy efficient LEDs. 
The low-profile, rugged die-cas! aluminum construction, ur.iversal back 
box, stainless steel hardware along with a sealed and gasketed optical 
compartment make the Crosstour impervious ro contaminants. The 
Crosstour wall luminaire is ideal for wall/surface, inverted mount for 
favadetcanopy illumination, postlbo!lard, site lighting, floodlight and low 
level pathway illumination including stairs. Typical applications inciude 
building entrances, multi-use facil ities, apartment buildings, institutions, 
schools, stairways and loading docks test. 

SPECIFICATION FEATURES 

Construct ion 
Slim, low-profile LED design 
with rugged one-piece, die-cast 
aluminum hinged removable door 
and back box. Matching housing 
styles incorporate both a small 
and m edium design. The small 
housing is available in 12W, 18W 
and 26W. The m edium housing 
is avai lable in the 38W model. 
Patented secure lock hinge feature 
allows for safe and easy tool-less 
electrical connections w ith the 
supplied push-in connectors. Back 
box includes three half-inch, NPT 
threaded conduit entry points. The 
universal back box supports both 
the small and medium forms and 
mounts to standard 3-1/2" to 4" 
round and octagonal, 4" square, 
single gang and masonry junction 
boxes. Key hole gasket allows 
for adaptation to junction box or 
wa ll. External fin design extracts 
ho;;;! from the fixture ~;urface. One
piece silicone gasket seals door 
and back box. Minimum 5" wide 
pole for site lighting application. 
Not recommended for car wash 
applications. 

Optical 
Silicone sealed optical LED 
chamber incorporates a custom 
engineered mirro.red anodized 
reflector providing high-efficiency 
illumination. Optica l assembly 
includes impact-resistant 
tempered glass and meets IESNA 
requirements for full cutoff 
compliance. Available in seven 
lumen packages; 5000K and 4000K 
CCT. 

Electrical 
LED driver is mounted to the 
die-;;ast housing for optimal heat 
sinking. LED thermal management 
system incorporates both 
conduction and natural convection 
to transfer heat rapidly away from 
the LED source. 12W, 1 BW, 26W 
and 38W series operate in -40°C to 
40°C [-40°F to 104°F). High ambient 
50°C models available. Crosstour 
luminaires maintain greater than 
89% of initial light output after 
72,000 hours of operation. Three 
half-inch NPT threaded conduit 
ent ry points allow for thru-branch 
wiring. Back box is an authorized 

electrical wiring compartment. 
Integral LED electronic dr iver 
incorporates surge protection. 120-
277V 50/60Hz or 347V 60Hz models. 

Finish 
Crosstour is protected with a 
Super durable TGIC carbon 
bronze or summit white polyester 
powder coat paint. Super durable 
TGIC powder coal paint finishes 
w ithstand extreme climate 
conditions while providing optimal 
color and gloss retention of the 
installed life. 

Warranty 
Five-year warranty. 

DIMENSIONS ESCUTCHEON PLATES 

T
..,.., 

12W, 18W, 26W . ·~ 
6-314" [171 mml ,• 1· 

38W ! 
8" [203m ml J I 

i .~ I 
/ !o 1 

L-

1

-

1

!, -,~-. 18W-.26-W_J------L.-L, ,!J 
5-314' {146mm) 3-518 ' [92mml 38W 38W 
6 -5/8" [168mml 4' [102mm) 

10" 

;--t..o .==;;;;.;..... ~.j••I 
....__ ____ 17-1/2" [445mm] ____ _.] 

1 • 0 l 
~-~J~~I 
L_ 10" [254mm) ___J 

Powering Business Wotlcwid• 

Lu mark 
Twe · 

XTOR 
CROSSTOUR LED 

APPLICATIONS: 
WALL f SURFACE 
POST f BOLLARD 

LOW LEVEL 
FLOODLIGHT 

INVERTED 
SITE LIGHTING 

CERTIFICATION DAT A 
UL/cUL Wet Location Listed 
LM79 / LM80 Compliant 
ROHS Compliant 
ADA Comp liant 
NOM Compliant Models 
IP66 lngressed Protection Rated 
Title 24 Compliant 

TECHNICAL DATA 
400C Maximum Ambient Temperature 
External Supply Wiring 90"C Minimum 

EPA 
Effective Projected Area (Sq. Ft.I: 
XTOR1B, XTOR2B, XTOR38,,Q.34 
XTOR4B=0.45 

SHIPPING DATA: 
Approximate Net Weight: 
3.7 - 5.25 lbs. (1 .7 - 2.4 kgs.l 

TD514013EN 
2011.oi-22 11 :25:47 

68 of 73



~ 
rt agL• fE fl wlf/ If' r rr.:J ~" LJ ~ ! ,.. ; . i 

,, . l i ' ,, ·1 
l!.., J/: I 

I MAY 1
;1, 

U 1 9 2017 /i ~ 
- U I -t 1 ~~, 

Ciryof Keene 
New- Ha.mpdu.re-

CASE NUMBER: 
Property Address: 
Zone: 
Owner: 
Petitioner: 
Date of Decision: 

Notification of Decision: 

NOTICE OF DECISION 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

ZBA 17-02 
143 West St. 
Office District 
143 West St., LLC 
Brickstone Land Use Consultants, LLC 
March 6, 2017 

8~1 

Petitioner, 143 West St., LLC, represented by Brickstone Land Use Consultants, LLC, requests a 
Variance for property located at 143 West St. which is in the Office District. This request is to 
permit a mix of uses on a single lot in the Office District per Section 102-602, Permitted Uses in the 
Zoning Ordinances. Based upon the record, which is incorporated herein by reference, this request 
was approved with a vote of S-0. 

Conditions: 

Post Script: The section of the Zoning Ordinance was incorrectly noted on the application as 
Section 102-573. The correct section is Section 102-602 as noted. 

Any person directly affected has a right to appeal this Decision. The necessary first step, 
before any appeal may be taken to the courts, is to apply to the Board of Adjustment for a 
rehearing. The Motion for Rehearing must be filed not later than 30 days after the first date 
following the ref ere need Date of Decision. The Motion must fully set forth every ground upon 
which it is claimed that the decision is unlawful or unreasonable. See New Hampshire RSA 
Chapter 677, et seq. 

Ci~y 1J I Keene • 3 Washington St.reel • Keen e. NH • 0 34 31 • www.ci .keene.nh.us 

Wo rking Toward a Sus tainable Commun i~ 

69 of 73



Ci~ofKeene 
New- HtU41-pdu.,re, 

CASE NUMBER: 
Property Address: 
Zone: 
Owner: 
Petitioner: 
Date of Decision: 

Notification of Decision: 

NOTICE OF DECISION 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

ZBA 17-03 
143 West St. 
Office District 
143 West St., LLC 
Brickstone Land Use Consultants, LLC 
March 6, 2017 

Petitioner, 143 West St., LLC, represented by Brickstone Land Use Consultants, LLC, requests a 
Variance for property located at 143 West St. which is in the Office District. This request is to 
permit twelve parking spaces where sixteen spaces are required per Section 102-793, Minimum 
Parking Requirements of the Zoning Ordinances. Based upon the record, which is incorporated 
herein by reference, this request was approved with a vote of 5-0. 

Conditions: 

UuYJuh~· 
Corinne Marcou, Clerll 

Any person directly affected has a right to appeal this Decision. The necessary first step, 
before any appeal may be taken to the courts, is to apply to the Board of Adjustment for a 
rehearing. The Motion for Rehearing must be filed not later than 30 days after the first date 
following the referenced Date of Decision. The Motion must fully set forth every ground upon 
which it is claimed that the decision is unlawful or unreasonable. See New Hampshire RSA 
Chapter 677, et seq. 

City of Keene • 3 Washingto n Street • Keene. NH • 0343 1 • wv.w.ci.ketne.nh.us 

Working Toward a Sustainable Cornmuniry 

70 of 73



CITY OF KEENE 

NEW HAMPSHIRE 

 

DATE:  June 15, 2017 

TO:  Planning Board 

FROM:  Tara Kessler, Planner 

SUBJECT:  City of Keene Commission / Board Survey   

Included in this packet is a Survey for you to review and complete in advance of the June 26, 2017 

Planning Board meeting. This same Survey was sent to you via email in the week of June 12
th
. Please, 

return your completed survey at the June meeting or to the Planning Department on the 4
th
 Floor of City 

Hall.     

This Survey has been provided to members of all Boards and Commissions in the City to help identify the 

level of staff support necessary for continued success and to ensure City staff and resources are being 

used as efficiently as possible.   

Boards and Commissions have been an integral component of our City government, as they help to 

pursue the Community Goals and the Comprehensive Master Plan and provide citizens an opportunity to 

be engaged in their community’s initiatives over several decades.   The answers provided on the surveys 

will be used to assist in determining the resources currently required to support these efforts and identify 

if changes are needed, where efficiencies can be obtained or where alternative strategies recommended.    

Thank you for your assistance as we look to provide the best possible services, input opportunities and 

amenities to our residents. 

 

71 of 73



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE IS INTENDED TO BE BLANK. 



CITY OF KEENE 

New Hampshire 

BOARD MEMBER SURVEY 

Thank you for your service to the community through your membership on a City board.  The 

purpose of the survey questions is to assess city services provided to boards and commissions 

to ensure we are utilizing staff time in the most efficient and effective manner possible. 

1. Please identify the board or commission you are currently serving on for the city. 

 

 

2.  Does the committee membership work outside of the meetings?  If so, doing what? 

 

 

3. What is your average level of effort (in minutes/hours) to prepare for each meeting? 

 

 

4. What are your expectations in terms of support by the city of the committee’s efforts? 

 

72 of 73



 

5. Could committee members take on more of a role in the process?  Such as: agenda 
preparation, minutes review, speaker coordination, research, preparing formal 
recommendations and reports?  Please comment. 

 

 

6. Do you believe that a staff liaison’s attendance is important to the committee’s 
continued success, or do you believe the committee could organize your own efforts 
and have a staff liaison appear on a periodic basis? 

 

 

7. What resources do you feel the committee would need to become more autonomous in 
your work? 

 

 

73 of 73


	2017_06_26_pb_agenda
	THIS PAGE IS INTENDED TO BE BLANK
	SPR-08-17 183 Arch St Driveway.pdf
	SR
	183 Arch St. Driveway Packet

	SPR-08-17 183 Arch St Driveway.pdf
	183 Arch St. Driveway Packet
	SPR-08-17 183 Arch St Driveway
	Driveway Application



	SPR-08-17 183 Arch St Driveway
	183 Arch St. Driveway Packet
	SPR-08-17 183 Arch St Driveway.pdf
	Packet application

	SPR-08-17 183 Arch St Driveway
	5-30-17 Photo
	airphoto
	Maps2
	Maps



	S-02-17 Staff Report
	S-02-17 Application and Narrative
	S-02-17 Plan 11x17
	SPR-895 Mod 1 Staff Report
	SPR-895 Mod 1 Application
	SPR-895 Mod 1 Plan Set 11x17
	SPR-895 Mod 1 Elevation
	SPR-895 Mod 1 Drainage Report
	SPR-895 Mod 1 Light Cut Sheet
	143 West St. Packet
	Application
	B-W Elevations
	Color Elevations
	Historic District
	JUNE 9 17 REV 1 FULL SET
	Donahue Law Site Plan COVER (1).pdf
	Donahue Law Site Plan EXIST (1).pdf
	Donahue Law Site Plan PROP (1).pdf
	Donahue Law Site Plan GRADE (1).pdf
	Donahue Law Site Plan LANDSCP (1).pdf
	Donahue Law Site Plan LIGHTING (1).pdf

	SR-Final
	Storm piece
	wall-pak

	Survey Memo
	Member Survey (2)



